# **SECTION 4**

# FORMS 4.6.1 TO 9 TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.1.1 OVERVIEW OF THE TENDERER'S STAFF

#### i - Overview

	a -	Directors and management	
	b -	Administrative staff	
	c -	Technical staff	
		- Engineers	
		- Surveyors	
		- Foremen	
		- Mechanics	
		- Technicians	
		- Machine operators	
		- Drivers	
		- Other skilled staff	
		- Labourers and unskilled staff	
		Total	
ii -	Site or	peratives to be employed on the contract (if relevant)	
ii -	Site op a -	beratives to be employed on the contract (if relevant) Site management	
ii -		Site management	
ii -	a - b -		
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers - Surveyors	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers - Surveyors - Foremen - Mechanics	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers - Surveyors - Foremen - Mechanics - Technicians	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers - Surveyors - Foremen - Mechanics - Technicians - Machine operators	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers - Surveyors - Foremen - Mechanics - Technicians - Machine operators - Drivers	
ii -	a - b -	Site management Administrative staff Technical staff - Engineers - Surveyors - Foremen - Mechanics - Technicians - Machine operators	

#### Total

Date .....

\_\_\_\_\_

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.1.2

### STAFF TO BE EMPLOYED ON THE CONTRACT

Position/Name	Nationality	Age	Education	Years of experience (with the company/in construction)	Major works for which responsible (project/value)
Quality control				/	
Others responsible for 				/	
Others responsible for 				/	
······					

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date.....

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.1.3

### **PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE OF KEY STAFF**

#### **CURRICULUM VITAE**

(Maximum 3 pages + 3 pages of annexes)

Proposed position in the contract:

- 1. Surname:
- 2. Name:
- 3. Date and place of birth:
- 4. Nationality:
- 5. Civil status:
- Address (phone/fax/e-mail):

6. Education:	
Institutions:	
Date:	
From (month/year)	
To (month/year)	
Degree or qualification:	

#### 7. Language skills

Indicate on a scale of 1 to 5 (1 — excellent; 5 — basic):

Language	Level	Passive	Spoken	Written
	Mother tongue			

- 8. Membership of professional bodies:
- 9. Other skills (e.g. computer literacy):
- 10. Current position:
- 11. Years of professional experience:
- 12. Key qualifications:
- 13. Specific experience in non-industrialised countries:

Country	Name and brief description of the project

#### 14. Professional experience:

Date: from (month/year) to (month/year)	
Place	
Company/organisation	
Position	
Job description	

15. Others:

15a. Publications and seminars:

15b. References:

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date.....

### **SECTION 4**

## FORM 4.6.2

### PLANT

Plant proposed and available for implementation of the contract<sup>1</sup>

	DESCRIPTION (type/make/model)	Power/ capacity	No of units	Age (years)	Owned (O) or hired (H)/ and percentage of ownership	Origin (country)	Current approximate value in euro or national currency
<i>A</i> )	CONSTRUCTION PLANT						
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Not all the plant owned by the company. **15 January 2016** d4k\_techofferform\_4.6\_en.doc

	DESCRIPTION (type/make/model)	Power/ capacity	No of units	Age (years)	Owned (O) or hired (H)/ and percentage of ownership	Origin (country)	Current approximate value in euro or national currency
<b>B</b> )	VEHICLES AND TRUCKS						
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
<b>C</b> )	OTHER PLANT				/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		
					/		

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date.....

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.3

### WORK PLAN AND PROGRAMME

- 4.6.3.1 State the proposed location of your main office on the site, stations (steel/concrete/asphalt structures), warehouses, laboratories, accommodation, etc. (sketches to be attached as required).
- 4.6.3.2 Give a brief outline of your programme for completing the works in accordance with the required method of construction and stated time of completion.
- 4.6.3.3 Attach a critical milestone bar chart (schedule of execution) representing the construction programme and detailing relevant activities, dates, allocation of labour and plant resources, etc.
- 4.6.3.4 If the tenderer plans to subcontract part of the works, he must provide the following details:

Work intended to be subcontracted	Name and details of subcontractors	Value of subcontracting as percentage of the total cost of the project	Experience in similar work (details to be specified)

Signature .....

(*person(s*) *authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer*)

Date .....

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.4

### **EXPERIENCE AS CONTRACTOR**

#### **4.6.4.1** List of contracts of similar nature and scale performed during the past 3 years

Name of project/type of works	Total value of works the Contractor was responsibl e for <sup>2</sup>	Period of contract	Start date	Percentage of works completed	Contracting authority and place	Prime contractor (P) or subcontrac tor (S)	Final acceptance issued? - Yes - Not yet (current contracts) - No
A) In home country							

Name of project/type of works	Total value of works the Contractor was responsibl $e \text{ for}^2$	Period of contract	Start date	Percentage of works completed	Contracting authority and place	Prime contractor (P) or subcontrac tor (S)	Final acceptance issued? - Yes - Not yet (current contracts) - No
B) Abroad							

4.6.4.2<sup>3</sup> Please attach here available references and certificates from the relevant Contracting Authorities

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date .....

Amounts actually paid, without the effect of inflation. Please see point 4 in Instructions to Tenders if documentary evidence/proof is needed. 3 15 January 2016

<sup>2</sup> 

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.5

### DATA ON JOINT VENTURES

4.6.5.1	Name
4.6.5.2	Managing board's address
	Telex
	TelephoneE-mail
4.6.5.3	Agency in the state of the Contracting Authority, if any (for joint ventures/consortia with a foreign lead member)
	Office address
	Telex
	TelephoneFax
4.6.5.4	Names of members
	i)
	ii)
	iii)
	Etc
4.6.5.5	Name of lead member
4.6.5.6	Agreement governing the formation of the joint venture/consortium
	i) Date of signature:
	ii) Place:
	iii) Enclosure — joint venture/consortium agreement
4.6.5.7	Proposed division of responsibilities between members (in %) with a indication of the type of work to be performed by each

Signature:

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date: ...... **15 January 2016** d4k\_techofferform\_4.6\_en.doc an

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.6

### LITIGATION HISTORY

Please provide information on any history of litigation or arbitration resulting from contracts executed during the last X years or currently under execution.

A separate sheet should be used for each partner of a joint venture/consortium.

Year	Ruling FOR or AGAINST tenderer	Name of client, cause of litigation, and matter in dispute	Disputed amount (current value in euro or NC)

Signature .....

(*person*(*s*) *authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer*)

Date .....

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.7

### QUALITY ASSURANCE SYSTEM(S)

Please provide details of the quality assurance system(s) you propose using to ensure successful completion of the works.

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date ..... 15 January 2016 d4k\_techofferform\_4.6\_en.doc

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.8

### ACCOMMODATION FOR THE SUPERVISOR

Please attach sketches and data detailing the accommodation and facilities intended to be provided by the tenderer under the relevant items in the bill of quantities/breakdown of the overall price.

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date .....

### **SECTION 4**

### FORM 4.6.9

### FURTHER INFORMATION

Tenderers may add here any further information that they deem useful for the evaluation of their tenders.

Signature .....

(person(s) authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date .....

### ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE GRID

Contract title :		Publication reference :	
------------------	--	-------------------------	--

Tender envelope number	Tenderer name	Tender submission form duly completed? (Yes/No)	others	Tenderer's declaration (signed by each consortium member, if appropriate)? (Yes/No)	Language as required?	Sub-contracting statement acceptable? (Yes/No/ Not Applicable)	Nationality of sub- contractors eligible? (Yes/No)	Overall decision? (Accept / Reject)
1								
2								
3								
4								
5								
6								
7								
8								

Chairperson's name	
Chairperson's signature	
Date	

### **SECTION 5:**

## **EVALUATION GRID**

# **EVALUATION GRID**

(To be customised according to the project. The criteria indicated are to be used by the evaluation committee.)

This grid must be completed by each evaluator.

**Contract title:** 

Publication reference:

L	L.										
Tender envelope N $^\circ$	Tenderer's name	Rules of origin respected? (Yes/No)	Economic and financial capacity? (OK/a/b/)	Professional capacity? (OK/a/b/)	Technical capacity? (OK/a/b/)	Compliance with technical specifications? (OK/a/b/)	Ancillary services as required? (OK/a/b//NA)	Nationalities of subcontractors eligible? (Yes/No)	Other technical requirements in tender dossier? (Yes/No/Not applicable)	Technical compliance? (Yes/No)	Observations

Evaluator's name	
Evaluator's signature	
Date	

### SECTION 1 CONTRACT FORM

#### WORKS CONTRACT FOR EUROPEAN UNION EXTERNAL ACTIONS

#### NO <<mark>Contract number</mark>>

#### FINANCED FROM THE EU GENERAL BUDGET

Between

**Customs Office**, 30, Nicolae Starostenco Str MD-2065, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova ('The Contracting Authority'),

and

of the one part,

<Full official Name of Contractor> [<Legal status/title>]<sup>1</sup> [<Official registration number>]<sup>2</sup> <Full official address> [<VAT number>],<sup>3</sup>

('the Contractor')

have agreed as follows:

of the other part,

Inside the **PROJECT** entitled "Rehabilitation and modernization of the customs offices from the Romanian/Moldavian border, respectively the public finances and fiscal-fiscal responsibility customs offices of Albița - Leușeni, Sculeni – Sculeni and Giugiulești – Giurgiulești", financed by the European Union through the **Joint Operational Programme Romania – Republic of Moldova 2014 – 2020, according to the grant contract nr. 81701 /27.06.2019,** 

#### **CONTRACT TITLE < Rehabilitation and modernization of the Customs Office Giurgiulești**

# Identification number RMCO 81701/27.06.2019 – 3.2.3. Modernisation of the Customs Office Giurgiulești

Whereas the Contracting Authority would like the Contractor to carry out the following works:

- Construction of the scanning platform for the mobile scanner and radiological protection wall;
- Modernisation of the evacuation system for the torrent waters;
- Rehabilitation of the roads in the area of the BCP

and has accepted a tender by the Contractor for the execution and completion of such works and the remedying of any defects therein.

#### It is hereby agreed as follows:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Where the contracting party is an individual.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Where applicable.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Except where the contracting party is not VAT registered.

- (1) In this Contract, words and expressions shall have the meanings assigned to them in the contractual conditions set out below.
- (2) The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Contract, in the following order of precedence:
  - (a) the Contract,
  - (b) the Special Conditions,
  - (c) the General Conditions,
  - (d) the breakdown of lump-sum price,
  - (e) the Technical and /or Performance Specifications,
  - (f) the Design Documentation (drawings),
  - (g) the tender with appendix,
  - (h) any other documents forming part of the Contract.

The various documents making up the contract shall be deemed to be mutually explanatory; in cases of ambiguity or divergence, they shall prevail in the order in which they appear above. Addenda shall have the order of precedence of the document they are amending.

- (3) In consideration of the payments to be made by the Contracting Authority to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor undertakes to execute and complete the works and remedy defects therein in full compliance with the provisions of the Contract.
- (4) The Contracting Authority hereby agrees to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the works and remedying of defects therein the amount of:

- Contract price (excluding VAT/other taxes) \_\_\_\_\_ MDL,

- VAT and other taxes 0,00 MDL
- Contract price

\_\_\_\_ MDL <<mark>amount in words</mark>>

or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract. VAT will be paid in compliance with the binding regulations, national law and international agreements concerning the execution of the project. VAT and other taxes shall not be paid on the funds originating from EU funds.

(5) Other specific conditions applying to the Contract

In witness whereof the parties hereto have signed the Contract. This Contract shall take effect on the date on which it is signed by the last party, namely the Contractor.

Done in English in 2 originals, one original for the Contracting Authority and one original for the Contractor.

For the Contractor	For the Contracting Authority
Name:	Name:
Title:	Title:
Signature:	Signature:
Date:	Date:

#### **SECTION 2**

#### GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR WORKS CONTRACTS FINANCED BY THE EUROPEAN DEVELOPMENT FUND (EDF) OR THE EUROPEAN UNION

#### **CONTENTS**

PRELIMINAR	Y PROVISIONS	. 3
Article 1 -	Definitions	. 3
Article 2 -	Language of the contract	. 3
Article 3 -	Order of precedence of contract documents	. 3
Article 4 -	Communications	. 3
Article 5 -	Supervisor and Supervisor's representative	. 4
Article 6 -	Assignment	. 4
Article 7 -	Subcontracting	. 5
OBLIGATION	S OF THE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY	. 6
Article 8 -	Supply of documents	. 6
Article 9 -	Access to site	. 7
Article 10 -	Assistance with local regulations	. 7
Article 11 -	Delayed payments to the Contractor's staff	. 7
OBLIGATION	S OF THE CONTRACTOR	. 8
Article 12 -	General obligations	. 8
Article 13 -	Superintendence of the works	
Article 14 -	Staff	
Article 15 -	Performance guarantee	11
Article 16 -	Liabilities, Insurance and Security arrangements	
Article 17 -	Programme of implementation of tasks	16
Article 18 -	Detailed breakdown of prices	17
Article 19 -	Contractor's drawings and execution studies	17
Article 20 -	Sufficiency of tender prices	18
Article 21 -	Exceptional risks	19
Article 22 -	Safety on sites	20
Article 23 -	Safeguarding adjacent properties	20
Article 24 -	Interference with traffic	20
Article 25 -	Cables and conduits	21
Article 26 -	Setting-out	21
Article 27 -	Demolished materials	22
Article 28 -	Discoveries	22
Article 29 -	Temporary works	23
Article 30 -	Soil studies	23
Article 31 -	Overlapping contracts	
Article 32 -	Patents and licenses	24
IMPLEMENT	ATION OF THE TASKS AND DELAYS	24
Article 33 -	Commencement orders	24

Article 34 -	Period of implementation of tasks	
Article 35 -	Extension of the period of implementation of tasks	
Article 36 -	Delays in implementation of the tasks	
Article 37 -	Amendments	
Article 38 -	Suspension	
MATERIALS	AND WORKMANSHIP	30
Article 39 -	Work register	
Article 40 -	Origin and quality of works and materials	
Article 41 -	Inspection and testing	
Article 42 -	Rejection	
Article 43 -	Ownership of plant and materials	
PAYMENTS		
Article 44 -	General principles	
Article 45 -	Provisional price contracts	
Article 46 -	Pre-financing	
Article 47 -	Retention monies	
Article 48 -	Revision of prices	
Article 49 -	Measurement	
Article 50 -	Interim payments	39
Article 51 -	Final statement of account	
Article 52 -	Direct payments to sub-contractors	
Article 53 -	Delayed payments	
Article 54 -	Payments to third parties	
Article 55 -	Claims for additional payment	
Article 56 -	End date	
ACCEPTANC	E AND DEFECTS LIABILITY	43
Article 57 -	General principles	
Article 58 -	Tests on completion	
Article 59 -	Partial acceptance	
Article 60 -	Provisional acceptance	
Article 61 -	Defects liability	
Article 62 -	Final acceptance	46
BREACH OF	CONTRACT AND TERMINATION	47
Article 63 -	Breach of contract	
Article 64 -	Termination by the Contracting Authority	
Article 65 -	Termination by the Contractor	50
Article 66 -	Force majeure	50
Article 67 -	Decease	51
SETTLEMEN	T OF DISPUTES AND APPLICABLE LAW	52
Article 68 -	Settlement of disputes	52
Article 69 -	Applicable Law	53
FINAL PROV	ISIONS	53
Article 70 -	Administrative sanctions	53
Article 71 -	Verifications, checks and audits by European Union bodies	
Article 72 -	Data protection	

### **PRELIMINARY PROVISIONS**

#### Article 1 - Definitions

- 1.1. The definitions of the terms used throughout this General Conditions are laid down in the "Glossary of terms", annex A1a to the Practical Guide, which forms an integral part of this contract.
- 1.2. The headings and titles in these General Conditions shall not be taken as part thereof or be taken into consideration in the interpretation of the contract.
- 1.3. Where the context so permits, words in the singular shall be deemed to include the plural and vice versa, and words in the masculine shall be deemed to include the feminine and vice versa.
- 1.4. Words designating persons or parties shall include firms and companies and any organisation having legal capacity.

#### Article 2 - Language of the contract

2.1. The language of the contract and of all communications between the Contractor, Contracting Authority and Supervisor or their representatives shall be as stated in the Special Conditions.

#### Article 3 - Order of precedence of contract documents

3.1. The order of precedence of the contract documents shall be as stated in the Contract.

#### Article 4 - Communications

- 4.1. Any written communications between the Contracting Authority and/or the Supervisor on the one hand, and the Contractor on the other hand, shall state the contract title and identification number and shall be sent by post, cable, telex, facsimile transmission, e-mail or personal delivery, to the appropriate addresses designated by those parties for that purpose in the Special Conditions.
- 4.2. If the sender requires evidence of receipt, it shall state such requirement in its communication and shall demand such evidence of receipt whenever there is a deadline for the receipt of the communication. In any event, the sender shall take all the necessary measures to ensure timely receipt of its communication.
- 4.3. Wherever the contract provides for the giving or issue of any notice, consent, approval, certificate or decision, unless otherwise specified such notice, consent, approval, certificate or decision shall be in writing and the words 'notify', 'consent', 'certify',

'approve' or 'decide' shall be construed accordingly. Any such consent, approval, certificate or decision shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

#### Article 5 - Supervisor and Supervisor's representative

- 5.1. The Supervisor shall carry out the duties specified in the contract. Except as expressly stated in the contract, the Supervisor shall not have authority to relieve the Contractor of any of its obligations under the contract.
- 5.2. The Supervisor may, from time to time, while retaining ultimate responsibility, delegate to the Supervisor's representative any of the duties and authority vested in the Supervisor and he may at any time revoke such delegation or replace the representative. Any such delegation, revocation or replacement shall be in writing and shall not take effect until a copy thereof has been delivered to the Contractor. The administrative order which determines the duties, authority and identity of the Supervisor's representative shall be issued by the Supervisor at the moment of the commencement order. The role of the Supervisor's representative shall be to supervise and inspect works and to test and examine the materials employed and the quality of workmanship. Under no circumstances will the Supervisor's representative be empowered to relieve the Contractor of its obligations under the contract or save where express instructions to that effect are given below or in the contract order works resulting in an extension of the period of implementation of tasks or additional costs to be paid by the Contracting Authority or introduce variants in the nature or scale of the works.
- 5.3. Any communication given by the Supervisor's representative to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of such delegation shall have the same effect as though it had been given by the Supervisor, provided that:
  - a) any failure on the part of the Supervisor's representative to disapprove any work, materials or plant shall not prejudice the authority of the Supervisor to disapprove such work, materials or plant and to give the instructions necessary for the rectification thereof;
  - b) the Supervisor shall be at liberty to reverse or vary the contents of such communication.
- 5.4. Instructions and/or orders issued in writing by the Supervisor shall be considered an administrative order. Such orders shall be dated, numbered and entered by the Supervisor in a register, and copies thereof delivered by hand, where appropriate, to the Contractor's representative.

#### Article 6 - Assignment

- 6.1. An assignment shall be valid only if it is a written agreement by which the Contractor transfers its contract or part thereof to a third party.
- 6.2. The Contractor shall not, without the prior consent of the Contracting Authority, assign the contract or any part thereof, or any benefit or interest thereunder, except in the following cases:

- a) a charge, in favour of the Contractor's bankers, of any monies due or to become due under the contract; or
- b) the assignment to the Contractor's insurers of the Contractor's right to obtain relief against any other person liable in cases where the insurers have discharged the Contractor's loss or liability.
- 6.3. For the purpose of Article 6.2 the approval of an assignment by the Contracting Authority shall not relieve the Contractor of its obligations for the part of the contract already performed or the part not assigned for which the Contractor's performance guarantee may be kept.
- 6.4. If the Contractor has assigned its contract without authorization, the Contracting Authority may, without formal notice thereof, apply as of right the sanction for breach of contract provided for in Article 63 and 64.
- 6.5. Assignees must satisfy the eligibility criteria applicable for the award of the contract and they cannot fall under the exclusion criteria described in the tender dossier.
- 6.6. Before giving its approval the Contracting Authority should receive as needed a performance guarantee which may be requested for the full contract, a pre-financing guarantee and retention guarantee, from the assignees.

#### Article 7 - Subcontracting

- 7.1. A subcontract shall be valid only if it is a written agreement by which the Contractor entrusts performance of a part of the contract to a third party. Simple plant hire, labour only and supply contracts are not considered or construed "subcontracts" for the purpose of this Article.
- 7.2. The Contractor shall request to the Contracting Authority the authorisation to subcontract. The request must indicate the elements of the contract to be subcontracted and the identity of the subcontractors.

Within 30 days of receipt of this request, the Contracting Authority must either extend the delay for a maximum of 15 days or notify the Contractor of its decision, stating reasons should he withhold such authorization. If the Contracting Authority fails to notify its decision within the time limit referred to above, the request is deemed to be approved at the end of the time limit.

- 7.3. Subcontractors must satisfy the eligibility criteria applicable for the award of the contract and they cannot fall under the exclusion criteria described in the tender dossier.
- 7.4. Subject to Articles 7.6 and 52, no subcontract creates contractual relations between any subcontractor and the Contracting Authority.
- 7.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for the acts, defaults and negligence of its subcontractors and their agents or employees, as if they were the acts, defaults or negligence of the Contractor, its agents or employees. The approval by the Contracting Authority of

the sub-contracting of any part of the contract or of the subcontractor to perform any part of the works shall not relieve the Contractor of any of its obligations under the contract.

- 7.6. If a subcontractor has undertaken any continuing obligation for a period exceeding that of the defects liability period under the contract towards the Contractor in respect of the work executed or the goods, materials, plant or services supplied by the subcontractor, the Contractor shall, at any time after the expiration of the defects liability period, transfer immediately to the Contracting Authority, at the Contracting Authority's request and cost, the benefit of such obligation for the unexpired duration thereof. If the Contractor fails to effect such a transfer, the said continuing obligation(s) shall be transferred automatically.
- 7.7. If the Contractor enters into a subcontract without approval, the Contracting Authority may, without formal notice thereof, apply as of right the sanction for breach of contract provided for in Article 63 and 64.
- 7.8. If a subcontractor is found by the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor to be incompetent in discharging its duties, the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor may request the Contractor to forthwith remove the subcontractor from the site and either to provide a subcontractor with qualifications and experience acceptable to the Contracting Authority as a replacement, or to resume the implementation of the tasks itself.

## **OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY**

#### Article 8 - Supply of documents

- 8.1. Save where otherwise provided in the Special Conditions, within 30 days of the signing of the Contract, the Supervisor shall provide to the Contractor, free of charge, a copy of the drawings prepared for the implementation of tasks as well as two copies of the specifications and other contract documents. The Contractor may purchase additional copies of these drawings, specifications and other documents, insofar as they are available. Upon the final acceptance, the Contractor shall return to the Supervisor all drawings, specifications and other contract documents.
- 8.2. The Contracting Authority co-operates with the Contractor to provide information that the latter may reasonably request in order to perform the contract.
- 8.3. Unless it is necessary for the purposes of the contract, the drawings, specifications and other documents provided by the Contracting Authority shall not be used or communicated to a third party by the Contractor without the prior consent of the Supervisor.
- 8.4. The Supervisor shall have authority to issue to the Contractor administrative orders incorporating such supplementary documents and instructions as shall be necessary for the proper and adequate execution of the works and the remedying of any defects therein.

#### Article 9 - Access to site

- 9.1. The Contracting Authority shall, in due time and in conformity with the progress of the works, place the site and access thereto at the disposal of the Contractor in accordance with the approved programme of implementation of tasks referred to in Article 17. The Contractor grants appropriate access to other persons as set out in the Special Conditions or as instructed.
- 9.2. Any land procured for the Contractor by the Contracting Authority shall not be used by the Contractor for purposes other than the implementation of tasks.
- 9.3. The Contractor shall preserve any facilities placed at its disposal in a good state while it is in occupation and shall, if so required by the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor, restore them to their original state on completion of the contract, taking into account normal wear and tear.
- 9.4. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for improvements resulting from work carried out on its own initiative.

#### Article 10 - Assistance with local regulations

- 10.1. The Contractor may request the assistance of the Contracting Authority in obtaining copies of laws, regulations and information on local customs, orders or by-laws of the Country in which the works are executed, which may affect the Contractor in the performance of its obligations under the contract. The Contracting Authority may provide the assistance requested to the Contractor at the Contractor's cost.
- 10.2. Subject to the provisions of the laws and regulations on foreign labour of the Country in which the works are to be executed, the Contracting Authority provides reasonable assistance to the Contractor, at its request, for its application for any visas and permits required by the law of the Country in which the works are executed, including work and residence permits, for the personnel whose services the Contractor and the Contracting Authority consider necessary, as well as residence permits for their families.

#### Article 11 - Delayed payments to the Contractor's staff

11.1. Where there is a delay in the payment to the Contractor's employees of wages and salaries owing and of the allowances and contributions laid down by the law of the Country in which the works are executed, the Contracting Authority may give notice to the Contractor that within 15 days of the notice the Contracting Authority intends to pay such wages, salaries, allowances and contributions direct. Should the Contractor contest that such payments are due, it shall make representations to the Contracting Authority with reasons, within the 15 day period. If the Contracting Authority, having considered such representations, is of the opinion that payment of the wages and salaries should be made, it may pay such wages, salaries, allowances and contributions out of amounts due to the Contractor. Failing this, the Contracting Authority may obtain a contribution under any of the guarantees provided for in these General Conditions. Any action taken by the Contracting Authority under this Article shall not relieve the Contractor of its obligations to its employees, except to the extent that any obligation may be satisfied by this action.

The Contracting Authority shall not assume any responsibility towards the Contractor's employees by this action.

## **OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR**

#### Article 12 - General obligations

- 12.1. The Contractor shall, with due care and diligence, design the works to the extent stated in the contract, execute and complete the works in accordance with the contract and with the Supervisor instructions, and shall remedy any defects in the works.
- 12.2. The Contractor shall provide all superintendence, personnel, materials, plant, equipment and all other items, of a temporary or permanent nature required in and for such design, execution, completion and remedying of any defects, insofar as specified in, or may be reasonably inferred from the contract.
- 12.3. The Contractor shall take full responsibility for the adequacy, stability and safety of all operations and methods of construction under the contract.
- 12.4. The Contractor shall comply with any administrative orders given to him. Where the Contractor considers that the requirements of an administrative order go beyond the authority of the Supervisor or of the scope of the contract, the Contractor shall give notice, with reasons, to the Supervisor. If the Contractor fails to notify within the 30 day period after receipt thereof, he shall be barred from so doing. Execution of the administrative order shall not be suspended because of this notice.
- 12.5. The Contractor shall supply, without delay, any information and documents to the Contracting Authority or the European Commission upon request, regarding the conditions in which the contract is being executed.
- 12.6. The Contractor shall respect and abide by all laws and regulations in force in the Country in which the works are executed and shall ensure that its personnel, their dependants, and its local employees also respect and abide by all such laws and regulations. The Contractor shall indemnify the Contracting Authority against any claims and proceedings arising from any infringement by the Contractor, its employees and their dependants of such laws and regulations.
- 12.7. Subject to Article 12.9, the Contractor undertakes to treat in the strictest confidence and not make use of or divulge to third parties any information or documents which are linked to the performance of the contract without the prior consent of the Contracting Authority. The Contractor shall continue to be bound by this undertaking after completion of the tasks and shall obtain from each member of its staff the same undertaking. However, use of the contract's reference for marketing or tendering purposes does not require prior approval of the Contracting Authority, except where the Contracting Authority declares the contract to be confidential.
- 12.8. If the Contractor acts on behalf of or is a joint venture or consortium of two or more persons, all such persons shall be jointly and severally bound in respect of the obligations

under the contract, including any recoverable amount. The person designated by the consortium to act on its behalf for the purposes of this contract shall have the authority to bind the consortium. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture or consortium, including the share distribution between its members, shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Contracting Authority. Any alteration of the composition or the constitution of the prior consent of the Contracting Authority and the prior consent of the Contracting Authority.

- 12.9. Save where the European Commission requests or agrees otherwise, the Contractor shall ensure the highest visibility to the financial contribution of the European Union. To ensure such publicity the Contractor shall implement among other actions the specific activities described in the Special Conditions. All measures must comply with the rules in the Communication and Visibility Manual for EU External Actions published by the European Commission.
- 12.10. Any records must be kept for a 7-year period after the final payment is made under the contract. In case of failure to maintain such the Contracting Authority may, without formal notice thereof, apply as of right the sanction for breach of contract provided for in Article 63 and 64.

#### Article 12a - Code of Conduct

- 12a.1 The Contractor must at all times act impartially and as a faithful adviser in accordance with the code of conduct of its profession. It shall refrain from making public statements about the project or services without the Contracting Authority's prior approval. It shall not commit the Contracting Authority in any way whatsoever without its prior consent and shall make this obligation clear to third parties.
- 12a.2 The Contractor and its staff shall respect human rights and undertake not to offend the political, cultural and religious practices prevailing in the Country in which the works are executed.
- 12a.3 The Contractor shall respect environmental legislation applicable in the Country in which the works are executed and internationally agreed core labour standards, i.e. the ILO core labour standards, conventions on freedom of association and collective bargaining, elimination of forced and compulsory labour, elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation, and the abolition of child labour, as well as applicable obligations established by these Conventions:
  - Vienna Convention for the protection of the Ozone Layer and its Montreal Protocol on substances that deplete the Ozone Layer;
  - Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal (Basel Convention);
  - Stockholm Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants (Stockholm POPs Convention);
  - Convention on the Prior Informed Consent Procedure for Certain Hazardous Chemicals and Pesticides in International Trade (UNEP/FAO) (The PIC Convention) Rotterdam, 10 September 1998, and its 3 regional Protocols.

- 12a.4 The Contractor or any of its sub-contractors, agents or personnel shall not abuse of its entrusted power for private gain. The Contractor or any of its sub-contractors, agents or personnel shall not receive or agree to receive from any person or offer or agree to give to any person or procure for any person, gift, gratuity, commission or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for performing or refraining from any act relating to the performance of the contract or for showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the contract. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations and codes relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption.
- 12a.5 The payments to the Contractor under the contract shall constitute the only income or benefit it may derive in connection with the contract. The Contractor and its staff must not exercise any activity or receive any advantage inconsistent with their obligations under the contract.
- 12a.6 The execution of the contract shall not give rise to unusual commercial expenses. Unusual commercial expenses are commissions not mentioned in the contract or not stemming from a properly concluded contract referring to the contract, commissions not paid in return for any actual and legitimate service, commissions remitted to a tax haven, commissions paid to a recipient who is not clearly identified or commission paid to a company which has every appearance of being a front company. The European Commission may carry out documentary or on-the-spot checks it deems necessary to find evidence in case of suspected unusual commercial expenses.

#### Article 12b - Conflict of Interest

- 12b.1 The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to prevent or end any situation that could compromise the impartial and objective performance of the contract. Such conflict of interests may arise in particular as a result of economic interest, political or national affinity, family or emotional ties, or any other relevant connection or shared interest. Any conflict of interests which may arise during performance of the contract must be notified to the Contracting Authority without delay. In the event of such conflict, the Contractor shall immediately take all necessary steps to resolve it.
- 12b.2 The Contracting Authority reserves the right to verify that such measures are adequate and may require additional measures to be taken if necessary. The Contractor shall ensure that its staff, including its management, is not placed in a situation which could give rise to conflict of interests. Without prejudice to its obligation under the contract the Contractor shall replace, immediately and without compensation from the Contracting Authority, any member of its staff exposed to such a situation.
- 12b.3 The Contractor shall refrain from any contact which would compromise its independence or that of its personnel.
- 12b.4 The Contractor shall limit its role in connection with the project to the provision of the works described in the contract.
- 12b.5 The Contractor and anyone working under its authority or control in the performance of the contract or on any other activity shall be excluded from access to other EU budget/EDF funds available under the same project. However, the Contractor may participate after approval of the Contracting Authority if the Contractor is able to prove

that its involvement in previous stages of the project does not constitute unfair competition.

#### Article 13 - Superintendence of the works

- 13.1. The Contractor shall itself superintend the works or shall appoint a representative to do so. Such appointment shall be submitted to the Supervisor for approval within 30 days of the signature of the Contract. The Supervisor shall approve or refuse the appointment within 10 days. The approval may at any time be withdrawn. Should the Supervisor refuse the representative appointed within the deadline, or withdraw approval of the appointment, it shall set out the grounds on which its decision is based, and the Contractor shall submit an alternative appointment without delay. The address of the Contractor's representative shall be deemed to be the address for service given by the Contractor.
- 13.2. If the Supervisor withdraws its approval of the Contractor's representative, the Contractor shall, as soon as is practicable, after receiving notice of such withdrawal, remove the representative from the works and replace it with another representative approved by the Supervisor.
- 13.3. The Contractor's representative shall have full authority to make any decision necessary for the execution of the works, to receive and carry out administrative orders and to countersign the work register referred to in Article 39 or attachment, where appropriate. In any event, the Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the works are carried out satisfactorily including ensuring that the specifications and administrative orders are adhered to by its own employees and by its sub-contractors and their employees.

#### Article 14 - Staff

- 14.1. The persons employed by the Contractor must be sufficient in number, and permit the optimum use of the human resources of the Country in which the works are executed. Such employees must have the skills and experience necessary to ensure due progress and satisfactory execution of the works. The Contractor shall immediately replace all employees indicated by the Supervisor, in a letter stating reasons, as likely to jeopardize the satisfactory execution of the works.
- 14.2. The Contractor shall make its own arrangements for the engagement of all staff and labour. The rates of remuneration and the general working conditions, as laid down by the law of the Country in which the works are executed, shall apply as a minimum to employees on the site..

#### Article 15 - Performance guarantee

15.1. The Contractor shall, together with the return of the countersigned contract, furnish to the Contracting Authority a guarantee for the full and proper performance of the contract. The amount of the guarantee shall be as specified in the Special Conditions and shall be in the range of 5 and 10% of the amount of the contract price including any amounts stipulated in addenda to the contract.

- 15.2. The performance guarantee shall be held against payment to the Contracting Authority for any loss resulting from the Contractor's failure to perform its obligations under the contract.
- 15.3. The performance guarantee shall be in the format provided for in the contract and may be provided in the form of a bank guarantee, a banker's draft, a certified cheque, a bond provided by an insurance and/or bonding company, an irrevocable letter of credit or a cash deposit made with the Contracting Authority. If the performance guarantee is to be provided in the form of a bank guarantee, a banker's draft, a certified cheque or a bond, it shall be issued by a bank or bonding and/or insurance company approved by the Contracting Authority.
- 15.4. Unless stated otherwise in the Special Conditions, the performance guarantee shall be denominated in the types and proportions of currencies in which the original contract is payable.
- 15.5. No payments shall be made in favour of the Contractor prior to the provision of the guarantee. The guarantee shall continue to remain valid until the date of the issuing of the signed final statement of account referred to in Article 51.
- 15.6. During the performance of the contract, if the natural or legal person providing the guarantee is not able to abide by its commitments, the guarantee shall cease to be valid. The Contracting Authority shall give formal notice to the Contractor to provide a new guarantee on the same terms as the previous one. Should the Contractor fail to provide a new guarantee, the Contracting Authority may terminate the contract.
- 15.7. The Contracting Authority shall demand payment from the guarantee of all sums for which the guarantor is liable under the guarantee due to the Contractor's default under the contract, in accordance with the terms of the guarantee and up to the value thereof. The guarantor shall, without delay, pay those sums upon first demand by the Contracting Authority and the guarantor may not raise any objection for any reason whatsoever. Prior to making any claim under the performance guarantee, the Contracting Authority shall notify the Contractor stating the nature of the default in respect of which the claim is to be made.
- 15.8. Unless the Special Conditions provide otherwise, the performance guarantee shall be released within 60 days of the issuing of the signed final statement of account referred to in Article 51, for its total amount except for amounts which are the subject of amicable settlement, arbitration or litigation.

#### Article 16 - Liabilities, Insurance and Security arrangements

- 16.1. Liabilities
  - a) Liability for damage to works

Without prejudice to Article 61 (defects liability) and Article 66 (force majeure), the Contractor shall assume (i) full responsibility for maintaining the integrity of the works and (ii) the risk of loss and damage, whatever their cause, until the final acceptance as foreseen in Article 62.

Compensation for damage to the works resulting from the Contractor's liability in respect of the Contracting Authority is capped at an amount equal to one million euros if the contract value is less than or equal to one million euros. If the contract value is greater than one million euros, compensation for damages resulting from the Contractor's liability shall be capped to the contract value.

However, compensation for loss or damage resulting from fraud or gross negligence of the Contractor, its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable, can in no case be capped.

After the final acceptance as foreseen in Article 62, the Contractor shall remain responsible for any breach of its obligations under the contract for such period as may be determined by the law governing the contract, or by default for a period of 10 years.

b) Contractor's liability in respect of the Contracting Authority

At any time, the Contractor shall be responsible for and shall indemnify the Contracting Authority for any damage caused, during the performance of the works, to the Contracting Authority by the Contractor, its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable.

Compensation for damage resulting from the Contractor's liability in respect of the Contracting Authority is capped at an amount equal to one million euros if the contract value is less than or equal to one million euros. If the contract value is greater than one million euros, compensation for damages resulting from the Contractor's liability shall be capped to the contract value.

However, compensation for loss or damage resulting from the Contractor's liability in case of bodily injury, including death, can in no case be capped. The same applies to compensation for any damages of any kind resulting from fraud or gross negligence of the Contractor, its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable.

c) Contractor's liability in respect of third parties

The Contractor shall, at its own expense, indemnify, protect and defend, the Contracting Authority, its agents and employees, from and against all actions, claims, losses or damage, direct or indirect, of whatever nature (hereinafter "claim(s)") arising from any act or omission by the Contractor, its staff, its subcontractors and/or any person for which the Contractor is answerable, in the performance of the duties.

The Contracting Authority must notify any third party claim to the Contractor as soon as possible after the Contracting Authority becomes aware of them.

If the Contracting Authority chooses to challenge and defend itself against the claim(s), the Contractor shall bear the reasonable costs of defense incurred by the Contracting Authority, its agents and employees.

Under these general conditions, the agents and employees of the Contracting Authority, as well as the Contractor's staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable are considered to be third parties.

The Contractor shall treat all claims in close consultation with the Contracting Authority

Any settlement or agreement settling a claim requires the prior express consent of the Contracting Authority and the Contractor.

#### 16.2. Insurance

a) Insurance – general issues

At the latest together with the return of the countersigned contract, and for the period of implementation of tasks, the Contractor shall ensure that itself, its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable, are adequately insured with insurance companies recognized on the international insurance market, unless the Contracting Authority has given its express written consent on a specific insurance company.

At the latest together with the return of the countersigned contract, the Contractor shall provide the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor with all cover notes and/or certificates of insurance showing that the Contractor's obligations relating to insurance are fully respected. The Contractor shall submit without delay, whenever the Contracting Authority or the Project Manager so requests, an updated version of the cover notes and/or certificates of insurance.

The Contractor shall obtain from the insurers that they commit to personally and directly inform the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor of any event likely to reduce, cancel or alter in any manner whatsoever, that coverage. The insurers shall deliver this information as quickly as possible, and in any event at least thirty (30) days before the reduction, cancellation or alteration of the cover is effective. The Contracting Authority reserves the right to indemnify the insurer in case the Contractor fails to pay the premium, without prejudice to the Contracting Authority's right to recover the amount of the premium it paid, and to subsequently seek compensation for its possible resulting damage.

Whenever possible, the Contractor shall ensure that the subscribed insurance contracts contain a waiver of recourse in favour of the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor, their agents and employees.

The purchase of adequate insurances by the Contractor shall in no case exempt it from its statutory and/or contractual liabilities. As a minimum, the insurances listed hereafter shall provide cover up to the minimum contractual liabilities laid down in pursuance of Article 16.1 or minimum statutory liabilities laid down in pursuance of the applicable national legislation, whichever is the highest.

The Contractor shall fully bear the consequences of a total or partial lack of coverage, and to the full discharge of the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor.

The Contractor shall ensure that its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable comply with the same insurance requirements imposed to it under this contract. In case of default of insurance or inadequate insurance of its staff, its subcontractors or any person for which the Contractor is answerable, the Contractor shall indemnify the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor from all consequences resulting therefrom.

Under its own responsibility and without prejudice to the obligation to take out all insurance covering its obligations under this contract, the Contractor shall ensure that all compulsory insurances are subscribed in compliance with the laws and regulations in force in the country in which the works are executed. It shall also ensure that all possible statutory obligations applying to the coverage are complied with.

The Contracting Authority and the Supervisor shall not bear any liability for the assessment and adequacy of insurance policies taken out by the Contractor with their contractual and/or statutory obligations.

b) Insurance - Specific issues

#### 1. Insurance for damage to third parties

The Contractor shall take out a civil liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage that may be caused to third parties by reason of the execution of the works, as well as during the defects liability period. The insurance policy must specify that the Contracting Authority's and the Supervisor's staff, as well as that of other contractors and third parties located on site are considered third parties under this insurance, which shall be unlimited for bodily injury.

#### 2. Works Insurance

The Contractor shall take out a "Contractor All Risk" insurance to the joint benefit of itself, its subcontractors, the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor.

This insurance shall cover all damage to which the works included in the contract may be subject, including damage due to a defect or a design flaw of the plans, the building materials or the implementation for which the Contractor is responsible under the contract and the damages due to natural events. This insurance shall also cover damage to existing goods and properties of the Contracting Authority and of the Supervisor.

This insurance shall also cover the equipment and the temporary works on the site up to their total value of reconstruction/replacement.

#### 3. Motor Insurance

The Contractor shall take out insurance covering all vehicles used by the Contractor or its subcontractors (whether they own them or not) in connection with the contract.

4. Insurance against accidents at work

The Contractor shall take out insurance policies providing coverage of the Contractor itself, its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable, in case of an accident at work or on the way to work. It shall ensure that its subcontractors do the same. It indemnifies the Contracting Authority against any claims that its employees or those of its subcontractors could have in this regard. For its permanent expatriate staff, where appropriate, the Contractor shall in addition comply with the laws and regulations applicable in the country of origin.

5. Insurance of liability related to the soundness of the works

The Contractor shall take out insurance covering in full its liability that may be triggered with regard to the soundness of the works even after final acceptance, as foreseen by the law of the Country in which the works are executed.

16.3. The Contractor shall put in place security measures for its staff commensurate with the physical danger possibly facing them in the Country in which they work. The Contractor shall be responsible for monitoring the level of physical risk to which its staff are exposed and for keeping the Contracting Authority informed of the situation. If the Contracting Authority or the Contractor becomes aware of an imminent threat to the life or health of any of the Contractor's staff, the Contractor must take immediate emergency action to remove the individuals concerned to safety. If the Contractor takes such action, he must communicate this immediately to the Supervisor.

#### Article 17 - Programme of implementation of tasks

- 17.1. Notwithstanding any work programme submitted as part of its tender, the Contractor shall provide the Supervisor with a programme of implementation of tasks, broken down by activity and by month within 30 days of the signature of the Contract. This programme includes at least the following information:
  - a) the order and time limits within which the Contractor proposes to carry out the works;
  - b) the time limits within which submission and approval of the drawings are required;
  - c) an organisation chart containing the names, qualifications and curricula vitae of the staff responsible for the site,
  - d) a general description of the method including the sequence, by month and by nature, which the Contractor proposes to carry out the works;
  - e) a plan for the setting out and organisation of the site, and
  - f) such further details and information as the Supervisor may reasonably require.
- 17.2. The Supervisor shall return these documents to the Contractor with its approval or any relevant remarks within ten days of receipt, save where the Supervisor, within those ten

days, notifies the Contractor of its wish for a meeting in order to discuss the documents submitted.

- 17.3. If the Supervisor fails to notify its decision or remarks or wish for a meeting within these 10 days, the programme submitted is deemed approved.
- 17.4. The approval of the programme by the Supervisor shall not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations under the contract.
- 17.5. No material alteration to the programme shall be made without the approval of the Supervisor. If, however, the progress of the works does not conform to the programme, the Supervisor may instruct the Contractor to submit a revised programme in accordance with the procedure laid down in Article 17.

#### Article 18 - Detailed breakdown of prices

- 18.1. If not provided in its tender and where necessary for the purposes of the contract, the Contractor shall provide a detailed breakdown of its rates and prices within no more than 20 days following the Supervisor's reasoned request.
- 18.2. Within 30 days of notification of the award of contract, the Contractor shall provide to the Supervisor for its information only, a detailed cash flow estimate, in quarterly periods, of all payments which may be due to the Contractor under the contract. The Contractor shall subsequently supply revised cash flow estimates at quarterly intervals, if so required by the Supervisor. The communication shall not impose any liability whatsoever on the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor.

#### Article 19 - Contractor's drawings and execution studies

- 19.1. The Contractor shall submit to the Supervisor for approval at its own expense, all design and construction drawings and other documents and objects necessary for the proper execution of the contract, and in particular:
  - a) drawings, documents, samples and/or models as may be specified in the contract within the time limits and procedures laid down therein or in the programme of implementation of tasks;
  - b) drawings as the Supervisor may reasonably require for the implementation of tasks.
  - c) plans, drawings and calculations needed to provide evidence of the stability and resistance of the structures, including foundation design and detailed reinforcement plan. These calculations and surveys should be sustained by sufficient site investigations and should be submitted in triplicate to the Supervisor for approval at least 30 days before commencing construction of the works in question.
- 19.2. The Supervisor shall return to the Contractor the drawings, documents, samples, models, design calculations, objects and other documents required under Article 19.1 with either its endorsement or its remarks within the time limits referred to in the contract or the

approved programme of implementation of tasks or, if no time limit is specified, within 15 days of receipt. In the light of the complexity or the number of documents submitted for approval, if the Supervisor cannot send its endorsement or its remarks within the time limit mentioned above, the Supervisor shall send within 15 days of receipt a holding reply, indicating another time limit by which it will send its endorsement or its remarks, taking into account the relative urgency and complexity of the matter.

If the Supervisor fails to notify its endorsement, remarks or holding reply within the time limits referred above, the drawings, documents, samples, models, design calculations, objects and other documents submitted to the Supervisor according to Article 19.1 shall be deemed to be approved at the end of the time limits specified above.

- 19.3. Approved drawings, documents, samples and models shall be signed or otherwise identified by the Supervisor and shall not be departed from except as otherwise instructed by the Supervisor. Any Contractor's drawings, documents, samples or models which the Supervisor refuses to approve, shall be modified to meet the requirements of the Supervisor and resubmitted by the Contractor for approval. Within 15 days of being notified of the Supervisor's remarks, the Contractor shall make the requisite corrections, adjustments etc. to the documents, drawings, design calculations etc. The corrected or adjusted documents, drawings, design calculations etc. shall be resubmitted for the Supervisor's approval under the same procedure.
- 19.4. The Contractor shall supply additional copies of approved drawings in the form and number stated in the contract or in subsequent administrative orders.
- 19.5. The approval of any drawings, documents, samples or models by the Supervisor shall not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations under the contract.
- 19.6. The Supervisor shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all drawings, documents, samples or models relating to the contract at the Contractor's premises.
- 19.7. Before provisional acceptance of the works, the Contractor shall supply operation and maintenance manuals together with drawings to the Contracting Authority, which shall be in such detail as will enable the Contracting Authority to operate, maintain, adjust and repair all parts of the works. Unless otherwise stated in the Special Conditions, the manuals and drawings shall be in the language of the contract. The works shall not be considered to be completed for the purpose of provisional acceptance until such manuals and drawings have been supplied to the Contracting Authority.

#### Article 20 - Sufficiency of tender prices

20.1. Subject to any additional provisions which may be laid down in the Special Conditions, the Contractor shall be deemed to have inspected and examined the site and its surroundings and to have satisfied itself before submitting its tender, as to the nature of the ground and sub-soil, and to have taken into account the form and nature of the site, the extent and nature of the work and materials necessary for the completion of the works, the means of communication with and access to the site, the accommodation it may require and in general to have obtained for itself all necessary information as to risks, contingencies and all other circumstances influencing or affecting its tender.

- 20.2. The Contractor shall be deemed to have satisfied itself before submitting its tender as to the correctness and sufficiency of the tender and of the rates and prices stated in the bill of quantities or price schedule which shall, except in so far as it is otherwise provided in the contract, cover all its obligations under the contract.
- 20.3. Since the Contractor is deemed to have determined its prices on the basis of its own calculations, operations and estimates, it shall carry out without additional charge any work which is the subject of any item whatsoever in its tender for which it neither indicates a unit price nor a lump sum.

## Article 21 - Exceptional risks

- 21.1. If during the execution of the works the Contractor encounters artificial obstructions or physical conditions which could not reasonably have been foreseen by an experienced Contractor, and if the Contractor is of the opinion that additional costs will be incurred and/or an extension of the period of implementation of tasks will be necessary as a result of this, it shall give notice to the Supervisor in accordance with Articles 35 and/or 55. The Contractor shall specify in such notice the artificial obstructions and/or physical conditions, giving details of the anticipated effects thereof, the measures it is taking or intends to take and the extent of the anticipated delay in or interference with the execution of the works.
- 21.2. Following receipt of the notice, the Supervisor may inter alia:
  - a) require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the cost of the measures it is taking or intends to take;
  - b) approve measures referred to in Article 21.2 (a) with or without modification;
  - c) give written instructions as to how the artificial obstructions or physical conditions are to be dealt with;
  - d) order an amendment to, a suspension, or termination of the contract.
- 21.3. To the extent that the Supervisor decides that the whole or part of the said artificial obstructions or physical conditions could not reasonably have been foreseen by an experienced Contractor, the Supervisor shall:
  - a) take into account any delay suffered by the Contractor as a result of such obstructions or conditions in determining any extension of the period of implementation of tasks to which the Contractor is entitled under Article 35; and/or
  - b) in case of artificial obstructions or physical conditions other than weather conditions, determine additional payments due to the Contractor in accordance with Article 55.
- 21.4. Weather conditions shall not entitle the Contractor to claims under Article 55.

21.5. If the Supervisor decides that the artificial obstructions or physical conditions could, in whole or in part, have been reasonably foreseen by an experienced Contractor, he shall so inform the Contractor as soon as practicable.

## Article 22 - Safety on sites

- 22.1. The Contractor shall have the right to forbid access to the site to any person not involved in the performance of the contract, with the exception of persons authorised by the Supervisor or the Contracting Authority.
- 22.2. The Contractor shall ensure the safety on sites during the whole period of execution and shall be responsible for taking the necessary steps, in the interests of its employees, agents of the Contracting Authority and third parties, to prevent any loss or accident which may result from carrying out the works.
- 22.3. The Contractor shall take all essential steps, on its own responsibility and at its expense, to ensure that existing structures and installations are protected, preserved and maintained. It shall be responsible for providing and maintaining at its expense all lighting, protection, fencing and security equipment which proves necessary for the proper implementation of the tasks or which may reasonably be required by the Supervisor.
- 22.4. If, during the implementation of the tasks, urgent measures are necessary to obviate any risk of accident or damage or to ensure security following any accident or damage, the Supervisor shall give formal notice to the Contractor to do what is necessary. If the Contractor is unwilling or unable to undertake the necessary measures, the Supervisor may carry out the work at the expense of the Contractor to the extent that the Contractor is liable.

## Article 23 - Safeguarding adjacent properties

- 23.1. On its own responsibility and at its expense, the Contractor shall take all the precautions required by good construction practice and by the prevailing circumstances to safeguard adjacent properties and avoid causing any abnormal disturbance therein.
- 23.2. The Contractor shall indemnify the Contracting Authority against the financial consequences of all claims by neighbouring landowners or residents to the extent that the Contractor is liable and to the extent that the damage to adjacent properties is not the result of a hazard created through the design or method of construction imposed by the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor upon the Contractor.

## Article 24 - Interference with traffic

24.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the works and installations do not cause damage to, or obstruct traffic on, communication links such as roads, railways, waterways and airports, save as permitted under the Special Conditions. It shall, in particular, take account of weight restrictions when selecting routes and vehicles.

24.2. Any special measures which the Contractor considers necessary or which are specified in the Special Conditions or which are required by the Contracting Authority in order to protect or strengthen sections of roads, tracks or bridges, shall be at the expense of the Contractor, whether or not they are carried out by the Contractor. The Contractor shall inform the Supervisor of any special measures it intends to take before carrying them out. The repair of any damage caused to roads, tracks or bridges by the transport of materials, plant or equipment shall be at the expense of the Contractor.

## Article 25 - Cables and conduits

- 25.1. Where, in the course of carrying out the works, the Contractor encounters bench-marks indicating the course of underground cables, conduits and installations, it shall keep such bench-marks in position or replace them, should execution of the works have necessitated their temporary removal. Such related operations require the authorisation of the Supervisor.
- 25.2. The Contractor shall be responsible for the preservation, removal and replacement, as the case may be, of the cables, conduits and installations specified by the Contracting Authority in the contract and for the cost thereof.
- 25.3. Where the presence of cables, conduits and installations has not been specified in the contract but is revealed by bench-marks and references, the Contractor shall be under a general duty of care and similar obligations regarding preservation, removal and replacement to those set out above. In this case, the Contracting Authority shall compensate it for expenditure, to the extent that such work is necessary for the execution of the contract.
- 25.4. However, the obligations to remove and replace cables, conduits and installations and the expenditure resulting therefrom shall not be the responsibility of the Contractor if the Contracting Authority decides to accept that responsibility. The same shall apply where this obligation and the expenditure resulting therefrom devolve upon another specialist administration or an agent.
- 25.5. When any work on the site is likely to cause disturbances in or damage to a public utility service, the Contractor shall immediately inform the Supervisor in writing, giving a reasonable period of notice so that suitable measures may be taken in time to allow work to continue normally.

#### Article 26 - Setting-out

- 26.1. The Contractor shall be responsible for:
  - a) the accurate setting-out of the works in relation to original marks, lines and levels of reference given by the Supervisor;
  - b) the correctness, of the position, levels, dimensions and alignment of all parts of the works; and
  - c) the provision of all necessary instruments, appliances and labour in connection with the foregoing responsibilities.

- 26.2. If, at any time during the execution of the works, any error appears in the position, levels, dimensions or alignment of any part of the works, the Contractor, shall, if the Supervisor so requires, at the Contractor's cost, rectify such error to the satisfaction of the Supervisor, unless such error is based on incorrect data supplied by the Supervisor which an experienced contractor exercising due care would not have discovered, in which case the Contracting Authority shall be responsible for the cost of rectification.
- 26.3. The checking of any setting-out or of any line or level by the Supervisor shall not in any way relieve the Contractor of its responsibility for the accuracy thereof and the Contractor shall carefully protect and preserve all bench-marks, sight-rails, pegs and other items used in setting-out the works.

## Article 27 - Demolished materials

- 27.1. Where the contract includes demolition work, materials and articles obtained therefrom shall, unless the Special Conditions and /or the law of the Country in which the works are executed otherwise provide and subject to the provisions of Article 28, become the property of the Contractor.
- 27.2. Should the Special Conditions reserve to the Contracting Authority the right of ownership of materials or all or part of the articles obtained from the demolition work, the Contractor shall take all the necessary precautions to ensure that these are preserved. It shall be liable for any destruction of, or damage to, such materials or articles caused by it or its agents.
- 27.3. Irrespective of the use to which the Contracting Authority intends to put the materials or articles, in respect of which it reserves the right of ownership, all costs incurred in transporting and storing them and all warehouse charges at the place indicated by the Supervisor shall be borne by the Contractor for any carriage not exceeding 1000 meters.
- 27.4. Save where the Special Conditions provide otherwise, the Contractor shall, at its expense, progressively remove rubble and other demolition materials, rubbish and debris from the site.

### Article 28 - Discoveries

- 28.1. Discoveries of any interest whatsoever made during excavation or demolition work shall be brought immediately to the attention of the Supervisor. The Supervisor shall decide how such discoveries are to be dealt with, taking due account of the law of the Country in which the works are executed.
- 28.2. The Contracting Authority reserves the right of ownership of materials found during the excavation and demolition work carried out on land belonging to it, subject to compensating the Contractor for any special efforts.
- 28.3. Artifacts, antiquities and natural, numismatic, or other objects which are of scientific interest, and also rare objects or objects made of precious metals found during excavation or demolition work shall be the property of the Contracting Authority.

28.4. In the event of disagreements, the Contracting Authority shall have sole authority to decide as to the qualifications set out in Articles 28.1 and 28.3.

## Article 29 - Temporary works

- 29.1. The Contractor shall carry out at its expense all the temporary works to enable the works to be carried out. The Contractor shall submit to the Supervisor the drawings for temporary works which the Contractor intends to use, such as cofferdams, scaffolding, trusses and shuttering. The Contractor shall take into account any observations made by the Supervisor while assuming responsibility for these drawings.
- 29.2. Where the design of particular temporary works is specified in the Special Conditions to be the responsibility of the Contracting Authority, the Supervisor shall provide the Contractor with all drawings necessary in reasonable time to enable the Contractor to undertake the temporary works in accordance with its programme. In such cases, the Contracting Authority shall be solely responsible for the safety and adequacy of the design. However, the Contractor shall be responsible for the proper construction.

#### Article 30 - Soil studies

30.1. Subject to the Special Conditions and to the technical specifications, the Contractor shall make available to the Supervisor, the personnel and equipment necessary for carrying out any soil survey which the Supervisor considers reasonably necessary. The Contractor shall be compensated for the actual cost of the manpower and equipment used or made available in such work, plus a reasonable profit, if not already provided for in the contract.

#### Article 31 - Overlapping contracts

- 31.1. The Contractor shall, in accordance with the requirements of the Supervisor, afford all reasonable opportunities for carrying out their work to any other contractors employed by the Contracting Authority and their workmen, to the workmen of the Contracting Authority and of any other public authorities who may be employed on or near the site in the execution of any work not included in the contract, or of any contract which the Contracting Authority may enter into in connection with, or ancillary to, the works.
- 31.2. If, however, the Contractor, on the written request of the Supervisor, makes available to any such Contractor, or public authority, or to the Contracting Authority, any roads or ways for the maintenance of which the Contractor is responsible, or permits the use by any such other persons of the Contractor's temporary works, scaffolding or other equipment on the site, or provides any other service of whatsoever nature, which was not provided for in the contract, the Contracting Authority shall pay to the Contractor in respect of such use or service, such sums and/or grant such extension of time, as shall, in the opinion of the Supervisor, be reasonable.
- 31.3. The Contractor shall not by reason of Article 31 be relieved of any of its obligations under the contract nor shall it be entitled to any claims other than those provided for in Article 31.2.

31.4. In no circumstances may difficulties arising with regard to one contract entitle the Contractor to modify or delay implementation of other contracts. Similarly, the Contracting Authority may not take advantage of such difficulties to suspend payments due under another contract.

#### Article 32 - Patents and licenses

- 32.1. Save where otherwise provided in the Special Conditions, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Contracting Authority and the Supervisor harmless for all damages and cost incurred due to any claim brought by any third party including creators and intermediaries for any alleged or actual violations of intellectual, industrial or other property rights of any kind whatsoever based on the Contracting Authority's use as specified in the contract of patents, licenses, drawings, designs, models, or brand or trademarks, except where such infringement results from compliance with the design or specification provided by the Contracting Authority and/or the Supervisor.
- 32.2. All industrial, intellectual and other property rights (including but not limited to patent rights and copyright) developed in connection with the tasks by or on behalf of the Contractor, including but not limited to any rights in any documents prepared for the purpose of the contract or the tasks, shall remain vested in the Contractor but the Contracting Authority shall have an irrevocable, royalty-free, non-exclusive licence of the above-mentioned rights for the purpose of the contract.

Such licence shall carry the right to grant sub-licences and shall be transferable by the Contracting Authority to third parties without the consent of the Contractor being required.

All industrial, intellectual and other property rights (including but not limited to patent rights and copyright) developed in connection with the tasks by or on behalf of the Contracting Authority, including but not limited to any rights in any documents prepared for the purpose of the contract or the tasks, shall remain vested in the Contracting Authority but the Contractor shall have the right at its cost to copy, use and obtain communication of these documents for the purpose of the contract.

Upon and notwithstanding any termination of the contract howsoever arising, as well as after completion of the tasks, the Contracting Authority shall continue to have the benefit of the licence referred to in Article 32.2, first paragraph.

# **IMPLEMENTATION OF THE TASKS AND DELAYS**

## Article 33 - Commencement orders

- 33.1. The Supervisor issues an administrative order notifying the Contractor of the date on which the period of implementation of tasks must start.
- 33.2. Save where the parties agree otherwise, the period of implementation of tasks shall not start before:

- a) in conformity with Article 9, the site, or part of the site has been placed at the disposal of the Contractor according to the progress of the work set out in the programme of implementation of tasks approved by the Supervisor;
- b) the documents mentioned under Article 8.1 have been provided to the Contractor.
- 33.3. Save where the Parties agree otherwise, the period of implementation of tasks shall start no later than 180 days following notification of award of the contract.

## Article 34 - Period of implementation of tasks

- 34.1. The period of implementation of tasks shall be as laid down in the Special Conditions, without prejudice to extensions of the period which may be granted under Article 35.
- 34.2. If provision is made for distinct periods of implementation of tasks for separate lots, in cases where one Contractor is awarded more than one lot per contract, the periods of implementation of tasks for the separate lots will not be accumulated.

## Article 35 - Extension of the period of implementation of tasks

- 35.1. The Contractor may request an extension to the period of implementation of tasks if it is or will be delayed in completing the contract by any of the following reasons:
  - a) exceptional weather conditions in the Country in which the works are executed which may affect the implementation of the tasks;
  - b) artificial obstructions or physical conditions which could not reasonably have been foreseen by an experienced Contractor;
  - c) administrative orders affecting the date of completion other than those arising from the Contractor's default;
  - d) failure of the Contracting Authority to fulfil its obligations under the contract;
  - e) any suspension of the works which is not due to the Contractor's default;
  - f) force majeure;
  - g) any other causes referred to in these General Conditions which are not due to the Contractor's default.
- 35.2. If the Contractor considers itself to be entitled to any extension of the period of implementation under the contract, the Contractor shall:
  - a) give notice to the Supervisor of its intention to make such a request no later than 15 days after the Contractor became aware, or should have become aware of the event or circumstance giving rise to the request.

If the Contractor fails to give notice of a request for extension of the period of implementation within such period of 15 days, the period of implementation shall

not be extended and the Contracting Authority shall be discharged from all liability in connection with the request; and

- b) submit to the Supervisor full and detailed particulars of the request, within 30 days from the above notification unless otherwise agreed between the Contractor and the Supervisor, in order that such request may be investigated.
- 35.3. Within 30 days from receipt of the Contractor's detailed particulars of the request, the Supervisor shall, by notice to the Contractor after due consultation with the Contracting Authority and, where appropriate, the Contractor, grant such extension of the period of implementation as may be justified, either prospectively or retrospectively, or inform the Contractor that it is not entitled to an extension.

## Article 36 - Delays in implementation of the tasks

36.1. If the Contractor fails to complete the works within the time period(s) specified in the contract, the Contracting Authority shall, without formal notice and without prejudice to its other remedies under the contract be entitled to liquidated damages for every day or part thereof which shall elapse between the end of the period specified for implementation of tasks or extended period of implementation of tasks under Article 35 and the actual date of completion, at the rate and up to the maximum amount specified in the Special Conditions.

If the works have been the subject of partial acceptance in accordance with Article 59, the liquidated damages specified in the Special Conditions may be reduced in the proportion which the value of the accepted part bears to the value of the whole of the works.

- 36.2. If the Contracting Authority has become entitled to the maximum claim under Article 36.1 it may, after giving notice to the Contractor:
  - a) seize the performance guarantee; and/or
  - b) terminate the contract; and/or
  - c) enter into a contract with a third party at the Contractor's cost for the provision of the balance of the works.

#### Article 37 - Amendments

- 37.1. Contract amendments must be formalised by a contract addendum signed by both parties or by an administrative order issued by the Supervisor except if the amendments result from the application of the contract.
- 37.2. The Supervisor shall have the power to order any amendment to any part of the works necessary for the proper completion and/or functioning of the works. Such amendments by administrative order may include additions, omissions, substitutions, changes in quality, quantity, form, character, kind, position, dimension, level or line and changes in the specified sequence, method or timing of execution of the works. No administrative order shall have the effect of invalidating the contract, but the financial effect, if any, of all such amendments shall be valued in accordance with Articles 37.5 and 37.7.

- 37.3. All administrative orders shall be issued in writing, it being understood that:
  - a) if, for any reason, the Supervisor finds it necessary to give an order orally, it shall as soon as possible thereafter confirm the order by an administrative order;
  - b) if the Contractor confirms in writing an oral order given for the purpose of Article 37.3 (a) and the confirmation is not contradicted in writing forthwith by the Supervisor, the Supervisor shall be deemed to have issued an administrative order;
  - c) no administrative order is required to increase or decrease the quantity of any work where such increase or decrease is the result of the quantity exceeding or being less than that stated in the bill of quantities or price schedule, as the result of measurement laid down in article 49.
- 37.4. Save as provided by Article 37.3 prior to issuing an administrative order, the Supervisor shall notify the Contractor of the nature and form of such amendment. The Contractor shall then, without delay, submit to the Supervisor a written proposal containing:
  - a) a description of the tasks to be implemented or the measures to be taken and a programme for execution;
  - b) any necessary amendments to the programme of implementation of tasks or to any of the Contractor's obligations resulting from this contract; and
  - c) any adjustment to the contract price in accordance with the rules set out in Article 37.
- 37.5. Following the receipt of the Contractor's submission referred to in Article 37.4, the Supervisor shall, after due consultation with the Contracting Authority and, where appropriate, the Contractor, decide without delay whether or not to accept the amendment. If the Supervisor accepts the amendment, it shall notify the Contractor through an administrative order stating that the Contractor shall carry out the amendment at the prices and under the conditions given in the Contractor's submission referred to in Article 37.4 or as modified by the Supervisor in accordance with Article 37.6.
- 37.6. The Supervisor shall, for all amendments ordered by it in accordance with Article 37.3 and 37.5, ascertain the prices in accordance with the following principles:
  - a) where work is of similar character and executed under similar conditions as work priced in the bill of quantities or price schedule, it shall be valued at such rates and prices contained therein;
  - b) where work is not of a similar character or is not executed under similar conditions, the rates and prices in the contract shall be used as the basis for valuation as far as is reasonable, failing which the Supervisor shall make a fair valuation;
  - c) if the nature or amount of any amendment relative to the nature or amount of the whole contract or to any part thereof is such that, in the opinion of the Supervisor, any rate or price contained in the contract for any item of work is, by reason of such amendment, rendered unreasonable, the Supervisor shall fix such rate or price as he thinks reasonable and proper in the circumstances;

- d) where an amendment is required by a default or breach of contract by the Contractor, any additional cost attributable to such amendment shall be borne by the Contractor.
- 37.7. On receipt of the administrative order, the Contractor shall carry out the requested amendment according to the following principles:
  - a) The Contractor will be bound by these General Conditions as if the amendment requested by administrative order were stated in the contract.
  - b) The Contractor shall not delay the execution of the administrative order pending the granting of any extension of time for completion or adjustment to the contract price.
  - c) Where the administrative order precedes the adjustment to the contract price, the Contractor shall keep records of the costs of undertaking the amendment and of the time expended thereon. Such records shall be open to inspection by the Supervisor at all reasonable times.
- 37.8. Where on provisional acceptance an increase or reduction in the total value of the works resulting from an administrative order, or from some other circumstance which is not caused by the Contractor's default, exceeds 15% of the initial contract price (or as amended by addendum), the Supervisor shall, after consulting the Contracting Authority and the Contractor, determine any addition to or reduction from the contract price as a consequence of applying Article 37.6. The sum so determined shall be based on the amount by which the increase or decrease in value of the works exceeds 15%. The Supervisor shall notify the sum to the Contracting Authority and the Contractor, and adjust the contract price accordingly.
- 37.9. The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Authority of any change of bank account, using the form in Annex V. The Contracting Authority shall have the right to oppose the Contractor's change of bank account.

#### Article 38 - Suspension

38.1. Suspension by administrative order of the Supervisor:

The Contractor shall, on the order of the Supervisor, suspend the progress of the works or any part thereof for such time or times and in such manner as the Supervisor may consider necessary. The suspension shall take effect on the day the Contractor receives the order or at a later date when the order so provides. The Supervisor shall, as soon as possible, instruct the Contractor to resume the contract suspended.

38.2. Suspension by notice of the Contractor:

Any default in payment of more than 30 days under any certificate issued by the Supervisor from the expiry of the time-limit referred to in Article 44.3(b) entitles the Contractor, after giving not less than 30 days' notice to the Contracting Authority, to suspend the work, or reduce the rate of the work, unless and until the Contractor has received reasonable evidence of payment or payment.

The Contractor's action shall not prejudice its entitlements to interest for delayed payment under Article 53.1 and to termination under Article 65.1.

If the Contractor subsequently receives such evidence or payment before giving notice of termination, the Contractor shall resume normal working as soon as reasonably practicable and, unless the parties agree otherwise, no later than 30 days after receiving the evidence or the payment.

38.3. Suspension in the event of presumed substantial errors, irregularities or fraud:

The contract may be suspended in order to verify whether presumed substantial errors or irregularities or fraud occurred during the award procedure or the performance of the contract. If these are not confirmed, performance of the contract shall resume as soon as possible.

- 38.4. During the period of suspension, the Contractor shall take such protective measures as may be necessary to safeguard the works, plant, equipment and site against any deterioration, loss or damage. Additional expenses incurred in connection with such protective measures may be added to the contract price, unless:
  - a) otherwise provided for in the contract; or
  - b) such suspension is necessary by reason of some breach or default of the Contractor; or
  - c) such suspension is necessary by reason of normal climatic conditions on site; or
  - d) such suspension is necessary for the safety or the proper execution of the works or any part thereof insofar as such necessity does not arise from any act, breach or default by the Supervisor or the Contracting Authority or from any of the exceptional risks referred to in Article 21, or
  - e) the presumed substantial errors or irregularities or fraud mentioned in article 38.3 are confirmed and attributable to the Contractor.
- 38.5. The Contractor shall introduce claims for additional payment or extension of the period of implementation in accordance with Articles 35 and 55.
- 38.6. If the period of suspension exceeds 180 days and the suspension is not due to the Contractor's breach or default, the Contractor may, by notice to the Supervisor, request to proceed with the contract within 30 days, or terminate the contract.
- 38.7. The Contracting Authority shall, as soon as possible, order the Contractor to resume the contract suspended or inform the Contractor that it terminates the contract.

# MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

## Article 39 - Work register

- 39.1. A work register shall, unless otherwise provided by the Special Conditions, be kept on the site by the Supervisor, who shall enter in it at least the following information:
  - a) the weather conditions, interruptions of work owing to inclement weather, hours of work, number and type of workmen employed on the site, materials supplied, equipment in use, equipment not in working order, tests carried out in situ, samples dispatched, unforeseen circumstances, as well as orders given to the Contractor;
  - b) detailed statements of all the quantitative and qualitative elements of the work done and the supplies delivered and used, capable of being checked on the site and relevant in calculating payments to be made to the Contractor.
- 39.2. The statements shall form an integral part of the work register but may, where appropriate, be recorded in separate documents. The technical rules for drawing up the statements shall be as set out in the Special Conditions.
- 39.3. The Contractor shall ensure that statements are drawn up, in good time and in accordance with the Special Conditions, in respect of work, services and supplies which cannot be measured or verified subsequently; failing this, it shall accept the decisions of the Supervisor, unless, at its own expense, it provides evidence to the contrary.
- 39.4. Entries made in the work register as work progresses shall be signed by the Supervisor and countersigned by the Contractor or its representative. If the Contractor objects, it shall communicate its views to the Supervisor within 15 days following the date on which the entry or the statements objected to are recorded. Should it fail to countersign or to submit its views within the period allowed, the Contractor shall be deemed to agree with the notes shown in the register. The Contractor may examine the work register at any time and may, without removing the document, make or receive a copy of entries which it considers necessary for its own information.
- 39.5. The Contractor shall, on request, provide the Supervisor with the information needed to keep the work register in good order.

#### Article 40 - Origin and quality of works and materials

- 40.1. Save where otherwise provided for in the Special Conditions, all goods purchased under the contract shall have their origin in any eligible source country as defined in the Invitation to Tender. The Contractor must certify that the goods tendered comply with this requirement, specifying their countries of origin. It may be required to provide more detailed information in this respect.
- 40.2. The works, components and materials shall conform to the specifications, drawings, surveys, models, samples, patterns and other requirements in the contract which shall be

held at the disposal of the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor for the purposes of identification throughout the period of performance.

- 40.3. Any preliminary technical acceptance stipulated in the Special Conditions shall be the subject of a request sent by the Contractor to the Supervisor. The request shall indicate the reference to the contract, the lot number and the place where such acceptance is to take place, as appropriate. The components and materials specified in the request must be certified by the Supervisor as meeting the requirements for such acceptance prior to their incorporation in the works.
- 40.4. Even if materials or items to be incorporated in the works or in the manufacture of components have been technically accepted in this way, they may still be rejected if a further examination reveals defects or faults, in which case they must immediately be replaced by the Contractor. The Contractor may be given the opportunity to repair and make good materials and items which have been rejected, but such materials and items will be accepted for incorporation in the works only if they have been repaired and made good to the satisfaction of the Supervisor.

## Article 41 - Inspection and testing

- 41.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the components and materials are delivered to the site in time to allow the Supervisor to proceed with acceptance of the components and materials. The Contractor is deemed to have fully appreciated the difficulties which it might encounter in this respect, and it shall not be permitted to advance any grounds for delay in fulfilling its obligations.
- 41.2. The Supervisor shall be entitled to inspect, examine, measure and test the components, materials and workmanship, and check the progress of preparation, fabrication or manufacture of anything being prepared, fabricated or manufactured for delivery under the contract in order to establish whether the components, materials and workmanship are of the requisite quality and quantity. This shall take place at the place of manufacture, fabrication, preparation or on the site or at such other places as may be specified in the Special Conditions.
- 41.3. For the purposes of such tests and inspections, the Contractor shall:
  - a) provide to the Supervisor, temporarily and free of charge, such assistance, test samples or parts, machines, equipment, tools, labour, materials, drawings and production data as are normally required for inspection and testing;
  - b) agree, with the Supervisor, on the time and place for tests;
  - c) provide access for the Supervisor at all reasonable times to the place where the tests are to be carried out.
- 41.4. If the Supervisor is not present on the date agreed for tests, the Contractor may, unless otherwise instructed by the Supervisor, proceed with the tests, which shall be deemed to have been made in the Supervisor's presence. The Contractor shall immediately send duly certified copies of the test results to the Supervisor, who shall, if he has not attended the test, be bound by the test results.

- 41.5. When components and materials have passed the above-mentioned tests, the Supervisor shall notify the Contractor or endorse the procedure's certificate to that effect.
- 41.6. If the Supervisor and the Contractor disagree on the test results, each shall give a statement of its views to the other within 15 days after such disagreement arises. The Supervisor or the Contractor may require such tests to be repeated on the same terms and conditions or, if either party so requests, by an expert to be selected by common consent. All test reports shall be submitted to the Supervisor who shall communicate the results of these tests without delay to the Contractor. The results of the re-testing shall be conclusive. The cost of re-testing shall be borne by the party whose views are proved wrong by the re-testing.
- 41.7. In the performance of its duties, the Supervisor and any persons authorised by him shall not disclose to unauthorised persons information concerning the undertaking's methods of manufacture and operation obtained through inspection and testing.

## Article 42 - Rejection

- 42.1. Components and materials which are not of the specified quality shall be rejected. A special mark may be applied to the rejected components or materials. This shall not be such as to alter them or affect their commercial value. Rejected components and materials shall be removed by the Contractor from the site within a period which the Supervisor shall specify, failing which they shall be removed by the Supervisor as of right at the expense and risk of the Contractor. Any work incorporating rejected components or materials shall be rejected.
- 42.2. The Supervisor shall, during the progress of the works and before the works are taken over, have the power to order or decide:
  - a) the removal from the site, within such time limits as may be specified in the order, of any components or materials which, in the opinion of the Supervisor, are not in accordance with the contract;
  - b) the substitution of proper and suitable components or materials; or
  - c) the demolition and proper re-execution, or satisfactory repair, notwithstanding any previous test thereof or interim payment therefore, of any work which, in respect of components, materials, workmanship or design by the Contractor for which it is responsible, is not, in the opinion of the Supervisor, in accordance with the contract.
- 42.3. The Supervisor shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, give to the Contractor notice of its decision specifying particulars of the alleged defects.
- 42.4. The Contractor shall with all speed and at its expense make good the defects so specified. If the Contractor does not comply with such order, the Contracting Authority shall be entitled to employ other persons to carry out the same and all expenses consequent thereon or incidental thereto may be deducted by the Contracting Authority from any monies due or which may become due to the Contractor.

42.5. The provisions of Article 42 shall not affect the right of the Contracting Authority to claim under Articles 36 and 63.

## Article 43 - Ownership of plant and materials

- 43.1. All equipment, temporary works, plant and materials provided by the Contractor shall, when brought on the site, be deemed to be exclusively intended for the execution of the works and the Contractor shall not remove the same or any part thereof, except for the purpose of moving it from one part of the site to another, without the consent of the Supervisor. Such consent shall, however, not be required for vehicles engaged in transporting any staff, labour, equipment, temporary works, plant or materials to or from the site.
- 43.2. The Special Conditions may provide that all equipment, temporary works, plant and materials on site owned by the Contractor or by any company in which the Contractor has a controlling interest shall, for the duration of the execution of the works, be:
  - a) vested in the Contracting Authority; or
  - b) made subject to a lien in favour of the Contracting Authority; or
  - c) made subject to any other arrangement regarding priority interest or security.
- 43.3. In the event of termination of the contract in accordance with Article 63 due to the Contractor's breach of contract, the Contracting Authority shall be entitled to use the equipment, temporary works, plant and materials on site in order to complete the works.
- 43.4. Any agreement for the hire by the Contractor of equipment, temporary works, plant and materials brought onto the site, shall contain a provision that on request in writing made by the Contracting Authority within 7 days after the date on which the termination under Article 64 becomes effective, and on the Contracting Authority undertaking to pay all hire charges in respect thereof from such date, the owner thereof will hire such equipment, temporary works, plant or materials to the Contracting Authority on the same terms as they were hired by the Contractor, save that the Contracting Authority shall be entitled to permit the use thereof by any other contractor employed by it for completing the works under the provisions of Article 64.3.
- 43.5. Upon termination of the contract before completion of the works, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting Authority any plant, temporary works, equipment or materials the property in which has vested in the Contracting Authority or been made subject to a lien by virtue of Article 43.2. If it fails to do so, the Contracting Authority may take such appropriate action as it deems fit in order to obtain possession of such plant, temporary works, equipment and materials and recover the cost of so doing from the Contractor.

## PAYMENTS

## Article 44 - General principles

- 44.1. Payments shall be made in euro or national currency as specified in the Special Conditions. The Special Conditions shall lay down the administrative or technical conditions governing payments of pre-financing, interim and/or final payments made in accordance with the General Conditions.
- 44.2. Payments due by the Contracting Authority shall be made to the bank account mentioned on the financial identification form completed by the Contractor. The same form, annexed to the payment request must be used to report changes of bank account.
- 44.3. Payment to the Contractor shall be done as follows:
  - a) Pre-financing payments shall be made within 90 days of receipt by the Contracting Authority of the Contractor's invoice and the documents referred to in Article 46.3. The date of payment shall be the date on which the paying account is debited.
  - b) Payments to the Contractor of the amounts due under each of the interim payment certificates and the final statement of account issued by the Supervisor shall be made within 90 days of such certificate of statement accompanied by the Contractor's invoice being delivered to the Contracting Authority. The date of payment shall be the date on which the paying account is debited.
- 44.4. The period referred to in 44.3 may be suspended by notifying the Contractor that the invoice cannot be paid because the sum is not due, because appropriate substantiating documents have not been provided or because there is evidence that the expenditure might not be eligible. In the latter case, an inspection may be carried out on the spot for the purpose of further checks. The Contractor shall provide clarifications, modifications or further information within 30 days of being asked to do so. Within 30 days of receipt of the clarification, the Supervisor shall decide and issue if need be a revised payment certificate or a final statement of account and the payment period shall continue to run from this date.
- 44.5. The Contractor undertakes to repay to the Contracting Authority any amounts paid in excess of the final amount due, before the deadline indicated in the debit note which is 45 days from the issuing of that note.

Should the Contractor fail to make repayment within the above deadline, the Contracting Authority may (unless the Contractor is a government department or public body of a Member State of the European Union) increase the amounts due by adding interest:

- at the rediscount rate applied by the central bank of the country of the Contracting Authority if payments are in the currency of that country;
- at the rate applied by the European Central Bank to its main refinancing transactions in euro, as published in the Official Journal of the European Union, C series, where payments are in euro,

on the first day of the month in which the time-limit expired, plus three and a half percentage points. The default interest shall be incurred over the time which elapses between the date of the payment deadline and the date on which payment is actually made. Any partial payments shall first cover the interest thus established.

Amounts to be repaid to the Contracting Authority may be offset against amounts of any kind due to the Contractor. This shall not affect the parties' right to agree on payment in instalments. Bank charges arising from the repayment of amounts due to the Contracting Authority shall be borne entirely by the Contractor.

Without prejudice to the prerogative of the Contracting Authority, if necessary, the European Union may as donor proceed itself to the recovery by any means.

- 44.6. Prior to, or instead of, terminating the contract as provided for in Article 64, the Contracting Authority may suspend payments as a precautionary measure without prior notice.
- 44.7. Where the award procedure or the performance of the contract proves to have been subject to substantial errors, irregularities or fraud attributable to the Contractor, the Contracting Authority may in addition to the possibility to suspend the performance of the contract in accordance with Article 38.3 and terminate the contract as provided for in Article 64, refuse to make payments and/or recover amounts already paid, in proportion to the seriousness of the errors irregularities or fraud.

## Article 45 - Provisional price contracts

- 45.1. In exceptional cases, where a provisional price contract has been awarded, the amount payable under the contract shall be calculated as follows:
  - a) as for cost-plus contracts in Article 49.1 (c); or
  - b) initially on the basis of provisional prices and, after the conditions for performing the contract are known, as for lump-sum contracts or unit price contracts in Article 49.1 (a) and (b) respectively, or as in a hybrid contract.
- 45.2. The Contractor shall supply such information as the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor may reasonably require in respect of any matter relating to the contract for the purpose of the calculation. Where agreement cannot be reached on the valuation of the works, the amounts payable shall be determined by the Supervisor.

## Article 46 - Pre-financing

- 46.1. If the Special Conditions so provide, pre-financing may be granted to the Contractor, at its request and before the first interim payment takes place, for operations connected with the implementation of the tasks, in the cases listed hereinafter:
  - a) as a lump-sum advance enabling it to meet expenditure resulting from the commencement of the contract;

- b) as pre-financing for the purchase or order of : materials, plant, equipment, machines, tools and of any other substantial prior expenses such as the acquisition of patents or study costs, necessary for the execution of the contract. A proof of the conclusion of such purchase or order shall be provided by the Contractor to obtain the pre-financing.
- 46.2. The Special Conditions shall state the amount of the pre-financing which shall not exceed 10% of the original contract price for the lump-sum referred to in Article 46.1 (a) and 20 % of the contract price for all other pre-financing referred to in Article 46.1 (b).
- 46.3. No pre-financing shall be granted until:
  - a) the signature of the contract;
  - b) provision of the performance guarantee in accordance with Article 15;
  - c) provision, for the full amount of the pre-financing, of a financial guarantee issued in accordance with Article 15.3 which shall remain effective until the prefinancing has been completely repaid by the Contractor out of interim payments under the contract unless otherwise provided for in the Special Conditions;
  - d) fulfilment of the Contractor's obligation under article 16;
  - e) approval of the programme of implementation of tasks by the Supervisor.
- 46.4. The Contractor shall use the pre-financing exclusively for operations connected with the implementation of the tasks. Should the Contractor misuse any portion of the pre-financing, it shall become due and repayable immediately and no further pre-financing payments will be made.
- 46.5. Should the pre-financing guarantee cease to be valid and the Contractor fail to re-validate it, either a deduction equal to the amount of the pre-financing may be made by the Contracting Authority from future payments due to the Contractor under the contract, or the Contracting Authority may apply the provisions of Article 15.6.
- 46.6. If the contract is terminated for any reason whatsoever, the guarantees securing the prefinancing may be invoked forthwith in order to repay the balance of the pre-financing still owed by the Contractor, and the guarantor shall not delay payment or raise objection for any reason whatever.
- 46.7. The pre-financing guarantee provided for in Article 46 shall be released as and when prefinancing is repaid.
- 46.8. Further conditions and procedures for granting and repaying pre-financing shall be as laid down in the Special Conditions.

## Article 47 - Retention monies

47.1. The sum which shall be retained from interim payments by way of guarantee to meet the Contractor's obligations during the defects liability period, and the detailed rules governing that guarantee, shall be stipulated in the Special Conditions, provided that it shall, in no case, exceed 10% of the contract price.

- 47.2. Subject to the approval of the Contracting Authority, the Contractor may, if it so wishes, substitute, not later than the date fixed for the commencement of the works, these retention sums by a retention guarantee, respecting the provisions of Articles 15.3 and 15.6.
- 47.3. The sum retained or the retention guarantee shall be released within 60 days of the issuing of the signed final statement of account referred to in Article 51, for its total amount except for amounts which are the subject of amicable settlement, arbitration or litigation.

## Article 48 - Revision of prices

- 48.1. Unless otherwise stipulated in the Special Conditions, and except as provided in Article 48.4 the contract shall be at fixed prices which shall not be revised.
- 48.2. Where prices may be revised under the contract, such revision shall take into account variations in the prices of significant local or external elements which serve as a basis for the calculation of the tender price, such as manpower, services, materials and supplies, as well as charges laid down by law or regulation. The detailed rules for the revision shall be as laid down in the Special Conditions.
- 48.3. Prices contained in the Contractor's tender shall be deemed:
  - a) to have been arrived at on the basis of the conditions in force 30 days prior to the latest date fixed for submission of tenders; or in the case of direct agreement contracts, on the date of the contract;
  - b) to have taken account of the legislation and the relevant tax arrangements applicable at the reference date fixed in Article 48.3 (a).
- 48.4. In the event of changes to, or introduction of, any national or State statute, ordinance, decree or other law, or any regulation or by-law of any local or other public authority, after the date stated in Article 48.3 which causes a change in the contractual relationship between the parties to the contract, the Contracting Authority and the Contractor shall consult on how best to proceed further under the contract, and may as a result of such consultation decide:
  - a) to amend the contract; or
  - b) on payment of compensation for the resulting imbalance by one party to the other; or
  - c) to terminate the contract by mutual agreement.
- 48.5. In the event of a delay in the implementation of the tasks for which the Contractor is responsible, the indices to be considered for the revision of prices during the period of delay shall be the most advantageous to the Contracting Authority between those applied to the last interim certificate issued for tasks implemented during the period of implementation of tasks and those revised up to the provisional acceptance of the tasks.

#### Article 49 - Measurement

- 49.1. The following methods shall apply to the valuation of works contracts:
  - a) For lump-sum contracts, the amount due under the contract shall be determined on the basis of the breakdown of the overall contract price, or on the basis of a breakdown expressed as a percentage of the contract price corresponding to completed stages of the works. Where items are accompanied by quantities, these shall be firm quantities for which the Contractor has submitted its all-in price, and shall be paid for irrespective of the quantities of work actually carried out.
  - b) For unit price contracts:
    - i. the amount due under the contract shall be calculated by applying the unit rates to the quantities actually executed for the respective items, in accordance with the contract;
    - ii. the quantities set out in the bill of quantities shall be the estimated quantities of the works, which shall not be taken as the actual and correct quantities of the works to be executed by the Contractor in fulfilment of its obligations under the contract;
    - iii. the Supervisor shall determine by measurement the actual quantities of the works executed by the Contractor, and these shall be paid for in accordance with Article 50. Unless otherwise provided in the Special Conditions no additions shall be made to the items in the bill of quantities except as a result of an amendment in accordance with Article 37 or another provision of the contract entitling the Contractor to additional payment;
    - iv. the Supervisor shall, when he requires any parts of the works to be measured, give reasonable notice to the Contractor to attend, or to send a qualified agent to represent him. The Contractor or its agent shall assist the Supervisor in making such measurements and shall furnish all particulars required by the Supervisor. Should the Contractor not attend, or omit to send such agent, the measurement made by the Supervisor or approved by him shall be binding on the Contractor;
    - v. the works shall be measured net, notwithstanding any general or local custom, except where otherwise provided for in the contract.
  - c) For cost-plus contracts, the amount due under the contract shall be determined on the basis of actual costs with an agreed addition for overheads and profit. The Special Conditions shall stipulate the information which the Contractor is required to submit to the Supervisor for the purpose of Article 49.1 (c) and the manner in which it should be submitted.
- 49.2. Where an item in the contract is indicated as 'provisional' the provisional sum set aside for it shall not be taken into account in calculating the percentages referred to in Article 37.

#### Article 50 - Interim payments

- 50.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice for interim payment to the Supervisor at the end of each period referred to in Article 50.7 in a form approved by the Supervisor. The invoice shall include the following items, as applicable:
  - a) the estimated contract value of the permanent works implemented up to the end of the period in question;
  - b) an amount reflecting any revision of prices pursuant to Article 48;
  - c) an amount to be withheld as retention sum under Article 47;
  - d) any credit and/or debit for the period in question in respect of plant and materials on site intended for, but not yet incorporated in, the permanent works in the amount and under the conditions set out in Article 50.2;
  - e) an amount to be deducted on account of the pre-financing repayment under the provisions of Article 46; and
  - f) any other sum to which the Contractor may be entitled under the contract.
- 50.2. The Contractor shall be entitled to such sums as the Supervisor may consider proper in respect of plant and materials intended for, but not yet incorporated in, the permanent works provided that:
  - a) the plant and materials conform with the specifications for the permanent works and are set out in batches in a way that they may be recognized by the Supervisor;
  - b) such plant and materials have been delivered to the site, and are properly stored and protected against loss or damage or deterioration to the satisfaction of the Supervisor;
  - c) the Contractor's record of requirements, orders, receipts and use of plant and materials under the contract are kept in a form approved by the Supervisor and such records are available for inspection by the Supervisor;
  - d) the Contractor submits with its statement, the estimated value of the plant and materials on site together with such documents as may be required by the Supervisor for the purpose of valuation of the plant and materials and providing evidence of ownership and payment therefor; and
  - e) where the Special Conditions so provide, ownership of the plant and materials referred to in Article 43 shall be deemed to be vested in the Contracting Authority.
- 50.3. Approval by the Supervisor of any interim invoice certified by him in respect of plant and materials pursuant to Article 50 shall be without prejudice to the exercise of any power of the Supervisor under the contract to reject any plant or materials which are not in accordance with the provisions of the contract.
- 50.4. The Contractor shall be responsible for any loss or damage to, and for the cost of storing and handling of, such plant and materials on site and shall effect such additional insurance as may be necessary to cover the risk of such loss or damage from any cause.

- 50.5. Within 30 days of receipt of the said invoice for interim payment, the Supervisor shall:
  - a) verify that, in the Supervisor's opinion, the invoice for interim payment reflects the amount due to the Contractor in accordance with the contract. In cases where there is a difference of opinion as to the value of an item, the Supervisor's view shall prevail.
  - b) on determination of the amount due to the Contractor, issue and transmit to the Contracting Authority for payment and to the Contractor for information, an interim payment certificate for the amount due to the Contractor and shall inform the Contractor of the works for which payment is being made.
- 50.6. The Supervisor may, by an interim payment certificate, make any corrections or modifications to any previous certificate issued by him, and has power to modify the valuation in or withhold the issue of, any interim payment certificate if the works or any part thereof is not being carried out to its satisfaction.
- 50.7. Unless the Special Conditions provide otherwise, the frequency shall be one interim payment per month.

## Article 51 - Final statement of account

- 51.1. Unless otherwise agreed in the Special Conditions, the Contractor shall submit to the Supervisor a draft final statement of account no later than 90 days after the issue of the final acceptance certificate referred to in Article 62. In order to enable the Supervisor to prepare the final statement of account, the draft final statement of account is submitted with supporting documents showing in detail the value of the work done in accordance with the contract and all further sums which the Contractor considers to be due to it under the contract.
- 51.2. Within 90 days after receipt of the draft final statement of account and of all information reasonably required for its verification, the Supervisor shall prepare and sign the final statement of account, which determines:
  - a) the amount which in its opinion is finally due under the contract; and
  - b) after establishing the amounts previously paid by the Contracting Authority and all sums to which the Contracting Authority is entitled under the contract, the balance, if any, due from the Contracting Authority to the Contractor, or from the Contractor to the Contracting Authority, as the case may be.
- 51.3. The Supervisor shall issue to the Contracting Authority or to its duly authorized representative, and to the Contractor, the final statement of account showing the final amount to which the Contractor is entitled under the contract. The Contracting Authority or its duly authorized representative and the Contractor shall sign the final statement of account as an acknowledgement of the full and final value of the work implemented under the contract and shall promptly submit a signed copy to the Supervisor together with the invoice for the payment of the agreed balance, if any, due to the Contractor. However, the final statement of account and the invoice for the payment of the balance shall not include amounts in dispute which are the subject of negotiations, conciliation, arbitration or litigation.

- 51.4. The final statement of account signed by the Contractor constitutes a written discharge of the Contracting Authority confirming that the total in the final statement of account represents full and final settlement of all monies due to the Contractor under the contract, other than those amounts which are the subject of amicable settlement, arbitration or litigation. However, such discharge becomes effective only after any payment due in accordance with the final statement of account has been made and the performance guarantee referred to in Article 15 has been returned to the Contractor.
- 51.5. The Contracting Authority is not liable to the Contractor for any matter or thing whatsoever arising out of, or in accordance with, the contract or execution of the works, unless the Contractor has included a claim in respect thereof in its draft final statement of account.

#### Article 52 - Direct payments to sub-contractors

- 52.1. When the Supervisor receives a claim from a sub-Contractor duly approved under Article 7 to the effect that the Contractor has not met its financial obligations so far as the sub-Contractor is concerned, the Supervisor gives notice to the Contractor either to pay the sub-Contractor or to inform it of the reasons why payment should not be made. Should such payment not be made, or reasons not be given within the period of notice, the Supervisor may, after satisfying itself that the work has been carried out, certify, and the Contracting Authority pays the debt claimed by the sub-Contractor out of the sums remaining due to the Contractor. The Contractor remains entirely responsible for the work in respect of which direct payment has been made.
- 52.2. If the Contractor gives adequate reasons for refusing to settle all or part of the debt claimed by the sub-contractor, the Contracting Authority only pays to the sub-contractor only the amounts not in dispute. Sums claimed by the sub-Contractor in respect of which the Contractor has given adequate reasons for its refusal to pay shall be paid by the Contracting Authority only after the parties have come to an amicable settlement, or after the decision of an arbitrating authority or after a judgment of a court has been duly notified to the Supervisor.
- 52.3. Direct payments to sub-contractors shall not exceed the value at contract prices of the services performed by the sub-contractors for which they request payment; the value at contract prices is calculated or assessed on the basis of the bill of quantities, the price schedule or the breakdown of the lump sum price.
- 52.4. Direct payments to sub-contractors are made entirely in the national currency of the Country in which the works are executed, or partly in such national currency and partly in foreign currency, in accordance with the contract.
- 52.5. Where direct payments to sub-contractors are made in foreign currency, they are calculated in accordance with Article 56. They shall not result in any increase in the total amount payable in foreign currency, as stipulated in the contract.
- 52.6. The provisions of Article 52 apply subject to the requirements of the law applicable by virtue of Article 54 concerning the right to payment of creditors who are beneficiaries of an assignment of credit or of a collateral security.

## Article 53 - Delayed payments

- 53.1. Once the time-limit referred to in Article 44.3 of the General Conditions has expired, the Contractor will, upon demand, submitted within two months of receiving late payment, be entitled to late-payment interest:
  - at the rediscount rate applied by the central bank by the law of the Country in which the works are executed if payments are in the currency of that country;
  - at the rate applied by the European Central Bank to its main refinancing transactions in euro, as published in the Official Journal of the European Union, C series, if payments are in euro,

on the first day of the month in which the time-limit expired, plus three and a half percentage points. The interest shall be payable for the time elapsed between the expiry of the payment deadline and the date on which the Contracting Authority's account is debited.

- 53.2. Any default in payment of more than 30 days after the expiry of the time-limit stated in Article 44.3(b) shall entitle the Contractor to suspend the work in accordance with the procedure laid down in article 38.2.
- 53.3. Any default in payment of more than 120 days after the expiry of the time-limit stated in Article 44.3(b) shall entitle the Contractor to terminate the contract in accordance with the procedure laid down in Article 65.

#### Article 54 - Payments to third parties

- 54.1. Orders for payments to third parties may be carried out only after an assignment made in accordance with Article 6. The assignment is notified to the Contracting Authority.
- 54.2. Notification of beneficiaries of the assignment is the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- 54.3. In the event of a legally binding attachment of the property of the Contractor affecting payments due to it under the contract, and without prejudice to the time limit laid down in Article 53, the Contracting Authority has 30 days, starting from the day when it receives notification of the definitive lifting of the obstacle to payment, to resume payments to the Contractor.

#### Article 55 - Claims for additional payment

- 55.1. If the Contractor considers itself being entitled to additional payment under the contract, the Contractor shall:
  - a) if it intends to make any claim for additional payment, give to the Supervisor notice of its intention or make such claim no later than 15 days after the Contractor became aware, or should have become aware of the event or circumstances giving rise of such claim, stating the reason for its claim;

If the Contractor fails to give notice of a claim for additional payment within such period of 15 days, the Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment, and the Contracting Authority shall be discharged from all liability in connection with the request; and

- b) submit full and detailed particulars of its claim as soon as it is reasonably practicable, but no later than 60 days after the date of such notice, unless otherwise agreed by the Supervisor. In case the Supervisor agrees to another deadline than the said 60 days, the agreed upon deadline will, in any event, require that such particulars shall be submitted no later than the date of submission of the draft final statement of account. The Contractor shall thereafter promptly submit such further particulars as the Supervisor may reasonably require assessing the validity of the claim.
- 55.2. When the Supervisor has received the full and detailed particulars of the Contractor's claim that it requires, he shall, without prejudice to Article 21.4, after due consultation with the Contracting Authority and, where appropriate, the Contractor, determine whether the Contractor is entitled to additional payment and notify the parties accordingly.
- 55.3. The Supervisor may reject any claim for additional payment which does not comply with the requirements of Article 55.

## Article 56 - End date

56.1. The payment obligations of the EC under this contract shall cease at most 18 months after the end of the period of implementation of tasks, unless the contract is terminated in accordance with these General Conditions. In the event of co-financing, this date shall be laid down in the Special Conditions.

## ACCEPTANCE AND DEFECTS LIABILITY

## Article 57 - General principles

- 57.1. Verification of the works by the Supervisor with a view to provisional or final acceptance shall take place in the presence of the Contractor. The absence of the Contractor shall not be a bar to verification on condition that the Contractor has been summoned in due form at least 30 days prior to the date of verification.
- 57.2. Should exceptional circumstances make it impossible to ascertain the state of the works or otherwise proceed with their acceptance during the period fixed for provisional or final acceptance, a statement certifying such impossibility shall be drawn up by the Supervisor after consultation, where possible, with the Contractor. The verification shall take place and a statement of acceptance or rejection shall be drawn up by the Supervisor within 30 days following the date on which such impossibility ceases to exist. The Contractor shall not invoke these circumstances in order to avoid its obligation of presenting the works in a state suitable for acceptance.

## Article 58 - Tests on completion

- 58.1. The works shall not be accepted until the prescribed verifications and tests have been carried out at the expense of the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the Supervisor of the date on which such verification and tests may commence.
- 58.2. Works which do not satisfy the terms and conditions of the contract, or in the absence of such terms and conditions, which are not carried out in accordance with trade practices in the Country in which the works are executed, shall, if required, be demolished and rebuilt by the Contractor or repaired to the satisfaction of the Supervisor, otherwise this shall be done as of right after due notice at the expense of the Contractor, by order of the Supervisor. The Supervisor may also require the demolition and reconstruction by the Contractor, or repair to the satisfaction of the Supervisor, under the same conditions, of any work in which unacceptable materials have been used, or carried out in the periods of suspension provided for in Article 38.

#### Article 59 - Partial acceptance

- 59.1. The Contracting Authority may make use of the various structures, parts of structures or sections of the works forming part of the contract as and when they are completed. Any taking over of the structures, parts of structures or sections of the works by the Contracting Authority shall be preceded by their partial provisional acceptance. However, works may in cases of urgency be taken over prior to acceptance provided an inventory of outstanding work is drawn up by the Supervisor and agreed to by the Contractor and the Supervisor beforehand. Once the Contracting Authority has taken possession of a structure, a part thereof or section of the works, the Contractor shall no longer be required to make good any damage resulting otherwise than from faulty construction or workmanship.
- 59.2. The Supervisor may, at the request of the Contractor and if the nature of the works so permits, proceed with partial provisional acceptance, provided that the structures, parts of structures or sections of the works are completed and suited to the use as described in the contract.
- 59.3. In the cases of partial provisional acceptance referred to in Article 59.1 and 59.2 the defects liability period provided for in Article 62 shall, unless the Special Conditions provide otherwise, run as from the date of such partial provisional acceptance.

#### Article 60 - Provisional acceptance

- 60.1. The works shall be taken over by the Contracting Authority when they have satisfactorily passed the tests on completion and a certificate of provisional acceptance has been issued or is deemed to have been issued.
- 60.2. The Contractor may apply, by notice to the Supervisor, for a certificate of provisional acceptance not earlier than 15 days before the works, in the Contractor's opinion, are complete and ready for provisional acceptance. The Supervisor shall within 30 days after the receipt of the Contractor's application either:

- a) issue the certificate of provisional acceptance to the Contractor with a copy to the Contracting Authority stating, where appropriate, its reservations, and, inter alia, the date on which, in its opinion, the works were completed in accordance with the contract and ready for provisional acceptance; or
- b) reject the application giving its reasons and specifying the action which, in its opinion, is required of the Contractor for the certificate to be issued.
- 60.3. If the Supervisor fails either to issue the certificate of provisional acceptance or to reject the Contractor's application within the period of 30 days, he shall be deemed to have issued the certificate on the last day of that period. The certificate of provisional acceptance shall not be deemed to be an admission that the works have been completed in every respect. If the works are divided by the contract into sections, the Contractor shall be entitled to apply for separate certificates for each of the sections.
- 60.4. Upon provisional acceptance of the works, the Contractor shall dismantle and remove temporary structures as well as materials no longer required for use in connection with the implementation of the contract. It shall also remove any litter or obstruction and redress any change in the condition of the site as required by the contract.
- 60.5. Immediately after provisional acceptance, the Contracting Authority may make use of all the works as completed.

## Article 61 - Defects liability

- 61.1. The Contractor shall be responsible for making good any defect in, or damage to, any part of the works which may appear or occur during the defects liability period and which:
  - a) results from the use of defective plant or materials or faulty workmanship or design of the Contractor; and/or
  - b) results from any act or omission of the Contractor during the defects liability period; and/or;
  - c) appears in the course of an inspection made by, or on behalf of the Contracting Authority.
- 61.2. The Contractor shall at its own cost make good the defect or damage as soon as practicable. The defects liability period for all items replaced or renewed shall recommence from the date when the replacement or renewal was made to the satisfaction of the Supervisor. If the contract provides for partial acceptance, the defects liability period shall be extended only for the part of the works affected by the replacement or renewal.
- 61.3. If any such defect appears or such damage occurs, during the defects liability period, the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor shall notify the Contractor. If the Contractor fails to remedy a defect or damage within the time limit stipulated in the notification, the Contracting Authority may:

- a) carry out the works itself, or employ someone else to carry out the works at the Contractor's risk and cost, in which case the costs incurred by the Contracting Authority shall be deducted from monies due to or from guarantees held against the Contractor or from both; or
- b) terminate the contract.
- 61.4. If the defect or damage is such that the Contracting Authority has been deprived substantially of the whole or a part of the benefit of the works, the Contracting Authority shall, without prejudice to any other remedy, be entitled to recover all sums paid in respect of the parts of the works concerned together with the cost of dismantling such parts and clearing the site.
- 61.5. In case of emergency, where the Contractor is not immediately available or, having been reached, is unable to take the measures required, the Contracting Authority or the Supervisor may have the work carried out at the expense of the Contractor. The Contracting Authority or the Supervisor shall as soon as practicable inform the Contractor of the action taken.
- 61.6. Where the Special Conditions stipulate that the maintenance work, necessitated by normal wear and tear, shall be carried out by the Contractor, such work shall be paid for from a provisional sum. Deterioration resulting from the circumstances provided for in Article 21 or from abnormal use shall be excluded from this obligation unless it reveals a fault or defect justifying the request for repair or replacement under Article 61.
- 61.7. The defects liability period shall be stipulated in the Special Conditions and technical specifications. If the duration of the defects liability period is not specified, it shall be 365 days. The defects liability period shall commence on the date of provisional acceptance and may recommence in accordance with Article 61.2.
- 61.8. After provisional acceptance and without prejudice to the defects liability referred to in Article 61, the Contractor shall no longer be responsible for risks which may affect the works and which result from causes not attributable to it. However, the Contractor shall be responsible as from the date of provisional acceptance for the soundness of the construction, as laid down in the law of the Country in which the works are executed.

## Article 62 - Final acceptance

- 62.1. Upon the expiry of the defects liability period, or where there is more than one such period, upon the expiry of the latest period, and when all defects or damage have been rectified, the Supervisor shall issue to the Contractor a final acceptance certificate and a copy thereof to the Contracting Authority stating the date on which the Contractor completed its obligations under the contract to the Supervisor's satisfaction. The final acceptance certificate shall be given by the Supervisor within 30 days after the expiration of the defects liability period, or as soon as any works ordered under Article 61 have been completed to the satisfaction of the Supervisor.
- 62.2. The works shall not be considered as completed until the final acceptance certificate has been signed by the Supervisor and delivered to the Contracting Authority, with a copy to the Contractor.

62.3. Notwithstanding the issuance of the final acceptance certificate, the Contractor and the Contracting Authority shall remain liable for the fulfilment of any obligation incurred under the contract prior to the issue of the final acceptance certificate, which remains unperformed at the time such final acceptance certificate is issued. The nature and extent of any such obligation shall be determined by reference to the provisions of the contract.

## **BREACH OF CONTRACT AND TERMINATION**

#### Article 63 - Breach of contract

- 63.1. Either party commits a breach of contract where it fails to perform its obligations in accordance with the provisions of the contract.
- 63.2. Where a breach of contract occurs, the party injured by the breach is entitled to the following remedies:
  - a) damages; and/or
  - b) termination of the contract.
- 63.3. Damages may be either:
  - a) general damages; or
  - b) liquidated damages.
- 63.4. Should the Contractor fail to perform any of its obligations in accordance with the provisions of the contract, the Contracting Authority is without prejudice to its right under article 63.2, also entitled to the following remedies:
  - a) suspension of payments; and/or
  - b) reduction or recovery of payments in proportion to the failure's extent.
- 63.5. Where the Contracting Authority is entitled to damages, it may deduct such damages from any sums due to the Contractor or call on the appropriate guarantee.

#### Article 64 - Termination by the Contracting Authority

- 64.1. The Contracting Authority may, at any time and with immediate effect, subject to Article 64.9, terminate the contract, except as provided for under Article 64.2.
- 64.2. Subject to any other provision of these General Conditions the Contracting Authority may, by giving seven days' notice to the Contractor, terminate the contract and expel the Contractor from the site in any of the following cases where:
  - a) the Contractor is in serious breach of contract for failure to perform its contractual obligations;

- b) the Contractor fails to comply within a reasonable time with the notice given by the Supervisor requiring it to make good the neglect or failure to perform its obligations under the contract which seriously affects the proper and timely performance of the works;
- c) the Contractor refuses or neglects to carry out any administrative orders given by the Supervisor;
- d) the Contractor assigns the contract or sub-contracts without the authorisation of the Contracting Authority;
- e) the Contractor is bankrupt, subject to insolvency or winding up procedures, is having its assets administered by a liquidator or by the courts, has entered into an arrangement with creditors, has suspended business activities, or is in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure provided for under any national law or regulation relevant to that Contractor;
- f) any organisational modification occurs involving a change in the legal personality, nature or control of the Contractor, unless such modification is recorded in an addendum to the contract;
- g) any other legal disability hindering performance of the contract occurs;
- h) the Contractor fails to provide the required guarantees or insurance, or the person providing the earlier guarantee or insurance is not able to abide by its commitments;
- i) the Contractor has been guilty of grave professional misconduct proven by any means which the Contracting Authority can justify;
- j) it has been established by a final judgment or a final administrative decision or by proof in possession of the Contracting Authority that the Contractor has been guilty of fraud, corruption, involvement in a criminal organisation, money laundering or terrorist financing, terrorist related offences, child labour or other forms of trafficking in human beings or has committed an irregularity;
- k) the Contractor, in the performance of another contract financed by the EU budget/EDF funds, has been declared to be in serious breach of contract, which has led to its early termination or the application of liquidated damages or other contractual penalties or which has been discovered following checks, audits or investigations by the European Commission, the Contracting Authority, OLAF or the Court of Auditors;
- 1) after the award of the contract, the award procedure or the performance of the contract proves to have been subject to substantial errors, irregularities or fraud;
- m) the award procedure or the performance of another contract financed by the EU budget/EDF funds proves to have been subject to substantial errors, irregularities or fraud which are likely to affect the performance of the present contract;

- n) the Contractor fails to perform its obligation in accordance with Article 12.8, Article 12a or Article 12b;
- o) the Contracting Authority has become entitled to the maximum claim under Article 36.1;
- p) the Contractor fails to perform its obligation in accordance with Article 61.3.

The cases of termination under points (e), (i), (j), (l), (m) and (n) may refer also to persons who are members of the administrative, management or supervisory body of the Contractor and/or to persons having powers of representation, decision or control with regard to the Contractor.

The cases of termination under points (a), (e), (f), (g), (i), (j), (k), (l), (m) and (n) may refer also to persons jointly and severally liable for the performance of the contract.

The cases under points (e), (i), (j), (k), (l), (m) and (n) may refer also to subcontractors.

- 64.3. Termination shall be without prejudice to any other rights or powers under the contract of the Contracting Authority and the Contractor. The Contracting Authority may, thereafter, complete the works itself or conclude any other contract with a third party, at the Contractor's own expense. The Contractor's liability for delay in completion shall immediately cease when the Contracting Authority terminates the contract without prejudice to any liability thereunder that may already have arisen.
- 64.4. Upon termination of the contract or when it has received notice thereof, the Contractor shall take immediate steps to bring the works to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and to reduce expenditure to a minimum.
- 64.5. The Supervisor shall, as soon as possible after termination, certify the value of the works and all sums due to the Contractor as at the date of termination.
- 64.6. In the event of termination:
  - a) a report of work performed by the Contractor shall be drawn up by the Supervisor as soon as possible after inspection of the works, and inventory taken of temporary structures, materials, plant and equipment. The Contractor shall be summoned to be present during the inspection and the taking of the inventory. The Supervisor shall also draw up statements of emoluments still owed by the Contractor to workers employed by him in relation to the contract and of sums owed by the Contractor to the Contracting Authority;
  - b) the Contracting Authority shall have the option of acquiring in whole or in part temporary structures which have been approved by the Supervisor, equipment, plant and materials specifically supplied or manufactured in connection with the execution of work under the contract;
  - c) the purchase price of the temporary structures, equipment, plant and materials referred to above shall not exceed the unpaid portion of the expenditure incurred by the Contractor, such expenditure being limited to that required for the performance of the contract under normal conditions;

- d) the Contracting Authority may purchase, at market prices, the materials and items supplied or ordered by the Contractor and not already paid for by the Contracting Authority on such conditions as the Supervisor considers appropriate.
- 64.7. The Contracting Authority shall not be obliged to make any further payments to the Contractor until the works are completed. After the works are completed, the Contracting Authority shall recover from the Contractor the extra costs, if any, of completing the works, or shall pay any balance still due to the Contractor.
- 64.8. If the Contracting Authority terminates the contract pursuant to Article 64.2, it shall, in addition to the extra costs for completion of the works and without prejudice to its other remedies under the contract, be entitled to recover from the Contractor any loss it has suffered up to 10% of the contract price.
- 64.9. Where the termination is not due to an act or omission of the Contractor, force majeure or other circumstances beyond the control of the Contracting Authority, the Contractor shall be entitled to claim in addition to sums owed to it for work already performed, an indemnity for loss suffered.
- 64.10. This contract shall be automatically terminated if it has not given rise to any payment in the two years following its signing by both parties.

## Article 65 - Termination by the Contractor

- 65.1. The Contractor may, by giving 14 days' notice to the Contracting Authority, terminate the contract if the Contracting Authority:
  - a) fails for more than 120 days to pay the Contractor the amounts due under any certificate issued by the Supervisor after the expiry of the time limit stated in Article 44.3; or
  - b) consistently fails to meet its obligations after repeated reminders; or
  - c) suspends the progress of the works or any part thereof for more than 180 days for reasons not specified in the contract, or not attributable to the Contractor's breach or default.
- 65.2. Such termination shall be without prejudice to any other rights of the Contracting Authority or the Contractor acquired under the contract. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall, subject to the law of the Country in which the works are executed, be entitled to immediately remove its equipment from the site.
- 65.3. In the event of such termination, the Contracting Authority shall pay the Contractor for any loss or damage the Contractor may have suffered. The maximum amount shall be 10% of the contract price.

## Article 66 - Force majeure

66.1. Neither party shall be considered to be in default or in breach of its obligations under the contract if the performance of such obligations is prevented by any circumstances of force

majeure which arises after the date of notification of award or the date when the contract becomes effective.

- 66.2. The term force majeure, as used herein covers any unforeseeable events, not within the control of either party and which by the exercise of due diligence neither party is able to overcome such as acts of God, strikes, lock-outs or other industrial disturbances, acts of the public enemy, wars whether declared or not, blockades, insurrection, riots, epidemics, landslides, earthquakes, storms, lightning, floods, washouts, civil disturbances, explosions. A decision of the European Union to suspend the cooperation with the partner country is considered to be a case of force majeure when it implies suspension of funding this contract.
- 66.3. Notwithstanding the provisions of Articles 36 and 64, the Contractor shall not be liable to forfeiture of its performance guarantee, liquidated damages or termination for default if, and to the extent that, its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the contract is the result of an event of force majeure. The Contracting Authority shall similarly not be liable, notwithstanding the provisions of Articles 53 and 65, for payment of interest on delayed payments, for non-performance or for termination by the Contractor for default, if, and to the extent that, the Contracting Authority's delay or other failure to perform its obligations is the result of force majeure.
- 66.4. If either party considers that any circumstances of force majeure have occurred which may affect performance of its obligations, it shall promptly notify the other party and the Supervisor, giving details of the nature, the probable duration and the likely effect of the circumstances. Unless otherwise directed by the Supervisor in writing, the Contractor shall continue to perform its obligations under the contract as far as is reasonably practicable, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance of its obligations which are not prevented by the force majeure event. The Contractor shall not put into effect such alternative means unless directed so to do by the Supervisor.
- 66.5. If the Contractor incurs additional costs in complying with the Supervisor's directions or using alternative means under Article 66.4, the amount thereof shall be certified by the Supervisor.
- 66.6. If circumstances of force majeure have occurred and continue for a period of 180 days then, notwithstanding any extension of time for completion of the works that the Contractor may by reason thereof have been granted, either party shall be entitled to serve upon the other 30 days' notice to terminate the contract. If, at the expiry of the period of 30 days, force majeure persists, the contract shall terminate and, in consequence thereof under the law governing the contract, the parties shall be released from further performance of the contract.

#### Article 67 - Decease

- 67.1. Where the Contractor is a natural person, the contract shall be automatically terminated if that person dies. However, the Contracting Authority shall examine any proposal made by the heirs or beneficiaries if they have notified their wish to continue the contract.
- 67.2. Where the Contractor consists of a number of persons and one or more of them die, a report shall be agreed between the parties on the progress of the works, and the

Contracting Authority shall decide whether to terminate or continue the contract in accordance with the undertaking given by the survivors and by the heirs or beneficiaries, as the case may be. The decision of the Contracting Authority shall be notified to those concerned within 30 days of receipt of such proposal.

- 67.3. In the cases provided for in Article 67.1 and 67.2, persons offering to continue to perform the contract shall notify the Contracting Authority thereof within 15 days of the date of decease.
- 67.4. Such persons shall be jointly and severally liable for the proper performance of the contract to the same extent as the deceased Contractor. Continuation of the contract shall be subject to the rules relating to establishment of any guarantee provided for in the contract.

## SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES AND APPLICABLE LAW

## Article 68 - Settlement of disputes

- 68.1. The parties shall make every effort to settle amicably any dispute relating to the contract which may arise between them, or between the Supervisor and the Contractor.
- 68.2. Once a dispute has arisen, a party shall notify the other party of the dispute, stating its position on the dispute and any solution which it envisages, and requesting an amicable settlement. The other party shall respond to this request for amicable settlement within 30 days, stating its position on the dispute. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the maximum time period laid down for reaching an amicable settlement shall be 120 days from the date of the notification requesting such a procedure. Should a party not agree to the other party's request for amicable settlement, should a party not respond in time to that request or should no amicable settlement be reached within the maximum time period, the amicable settlement procedure is considered to have failed.
- 68.3. In the absence of an amicable settlement, a party may notify the other party requesting a settlement through conciliation by a third person. If the European Commission is not a party to the contract, it may accept to intervene as conciliator. The other party shall respond to the request for conciliation within 30 days. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the maximum time period laid down for reaching a settlement through conciliation shall be 120 days from the notification requesting such a procedure. Should a party not agree to the other party's request for conciliation, should a party not respond in time to that request or should no settlement be reached within the maximum time period, the conciliation procedure is considered to have failed.
- 68.4. If the amicable settlement procedure and, if so requested, the conciliation procedure fails, each party may refer the dispute to either the decision of a national jurisdiction or arbitration, as specified in the Special Conditions.

#### Article 69 - Applicable Law

69.1. This contract shall be governed by the law of the country of the Contracting Authority or, where the Contracting Authority is the European Commission, by the European Union law supplemented as appropriate by Belgian law.

## **FINAL PROVISIONS**

#### Article 70 - Administrative sanctions

- 70.1. Without prejudice to the application of other remedies laid down in the contract, a sanction of exclusion from all contracts and grants financed by the EU, may be imposed, after an adversarial procedure, upon the Contractor who, in particular,
  - a) is guilty of grave professional misconduct, has committed irregularities or has been found in serious breach of its contractual obligations. The duration of the exclusion shall not exceed the duration set by final judgement or final administrative decision or, in the absence thereof, three years;
  - b) is guilty of fraud, corruption, participation in a criminal organisation, money laundering, terrorist-related offences, child labour or trafficking in human beings. The duration of the exclusion shall not exceed the duration set by final judgement or final administrative decision or, in the absence thereof, five years.
- 70.2. In the situations mentioned in Article 70.1, in addition or in alternative to the sanction of exclusion, the Contractor may also be subject to financial penalties representing 2-10% of the contract price.
- 70.3. Where the Contracting Authority is entitled to impose financial penalties, it may deduct such financial penalties from any sums due to the Contractor or call on the appropriate guarantee.
- 70.4. The decision to impose administrative sanctions may be published on a dedicated internet-site, explicitly naming the Contractor.
- 70.5 The above administrative sanctions may also be imposed on persons who are members of the administrative, management or supervisory body of the Contractor, on persons having powers of representation, decision or control with regard to the Contractor, on persons jointly and severally liable for the performance of the contract and on subcontractors.

#### Article 71 - Verifications, checks and audits by European Union bodies

71.1. The Contractor will allow the European Commission, the European Anti-Fraud Office and the European Court of Auditors to verify, by examining the documents and to make copies thereof or by means of on-the-spot checks, including checks of documents (original or copies), the implementation of the contract. In order to carry out these verifications and audits, the EU bodies mentioned above shall be allowed to conduct a full audit, if necessary, on the basis of supporting documents for the accounts, accounting documents and any other document relevant to the financing of the project. The Contractor shall ensure that on-the-spot accesses is available at all reasonable times, notably at the Contractor's offices, to its computer data, to its accounting data and to all the information needed to carry out the audits, including information on individual salaries of persons involved in the project. The Contractor shall ensure that the information is readily available at the moment of the audit and, if so requested, that data be handed over in an appropriate form. These inspections may take place up to 7 years after the final payment.

- 71.2. Furthermore, the Contractor will allow the European Anti-Fraud Office to carry out checks and verification on the spot in accordance with the procedures set out in the European Union legislation for the protection of the financial interests of the European Union against fraud and other irregularities.
- 71.3. To this end, the Contractor undertakes to give appropriate access to staff or agents of the European Commission, of the European Anti-Fraud Office and of the European Court of Auditors to the sites and locations at which the contract is carried out, including its information systems, as well as all documents and databases concerning the technical and financial management of the project and to take all steps to facilitate their work. Access given to agents of the European Commission, European Anti-Fraud Office and the European Court of Auditors shall be on the basis of confidentiality with respect to third parties, without prejudice to the obligations of public law to which they are subject. Documents must be easily accessible and filed so as to facilitate their examination and the Contractor must inform the Contracting Authority of their precise location.
- 71.4. The Contractor guarantees that the rights of the European Commission, of the European Anti-Fraud Office and of the European Court of Auditors to carry out audits, checks and verification will be equally applicable, under the same conditions and according to the same rules as those set out in this Article, to any sub-Contractor or any other party benefiting from EU budget/EDF funds.
- 71.5. Failure to comply with the obligations set forth in Article 71.1 to 71.4 constitutes a case of serious breach of contract.

#### Article 72 - Data protection

- 72.1. Any personal data included in the contract shall be processed pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 45/2001 on the protection of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data by the Community institutions and bodies and on the free movement of such data. The data shall be processed solely for the purposes of the performance, management and monitoring of the contract by the Contracting Authority without prejudice to possible transmission to the bodies charged with monitoring or inspection in application of EU law. The Contractor shall have the right to access his/her personal data and to rectify any such data. Should the Contractor have any queries concerning the processing of his/her personal data, s/he shall address them to the Contracting Authority. The Contractor shall have right of recourse at any time to the European Data Protection Supervisor.
- 72.2. Where the contract requires processing personal data, the Contractor may act only under the supervision of the data controller, in particular with regard to the purposes of

processing, the categories of data which may be processed, the recipients of the data, and the means by which the data subject may exercise his/her rights.

- 72.3. The data shall be confidential within the meaning of Regulation (EC) No 45/2001 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the protection of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data by Community institutions and bodies and on the free movement of such data. The Contractor shall limit access to the data to staff strictly needed to perform, manage and monitor the contract.
- 72.4. The Contractor undertakes to adopt technical and organisational security measures to address the risks inherent in processing and the nature of the personal data concerned in order to:
  - a) prevent any unauthorised person from having access to computer systems processing personal data, and especially:
    - aa) unauthorised reading, copying, alteration or removal of storage media;
    - ab) unauthorised data input, unauthorised disclosure, alteration or erasure of stored personal data;
    - ac) unauthorised persons from using data-processing systems by means of data transmission facilities;
  - b) ensure that authorised users of a data-processing system can access only the personal data to which their access right refers;
  - c) record which personal data have been communicated, when and to whom;
  - d) ensure that personal data processed on behalf of third parties can be processed only in the manner prescribed by the contracting institution or body;
  - e) ensure that, during communication of personal data and transport of storage media, the data cannot be read, copied or erased without authorisation;
  - f) design its organisational structure in such a way that it meets data protection requirements.

\* \* \*

#### VOLUME 2

#### SECTION 3 SPECIAL CONDITIONS

#### CONTENTS

These conditions amplify and supplement the General Conditions governing the Contract. Unless the Special Conditions provide otherwise, the General Conditions remain fully applicable. The numbering of the Articles of the Special Conditions is not consecutive but follows the numbering of the General Conditions. Other Special Conditions should be indicated afterwards.

#### Article 2 Language of the Contract

2.1 The language used shall be English or Romanian.

#### Article 4 Communication

- 4.1 From the Contracting Authority:
- Valeriu Garștea, Customs Office, 30, Nicolae Starostenco Str MD-2065, Chișinău, Republic of Moldova, tel.: +373 22 574272, <u>rmco-project@customs.gov.md</u>
- 4.2. From the Contractor:

#### Article 5 Supervisor and Supervisor's representative

5.1 The supervisor is appointed by the Contracting Authority.

5.2 The supervisor has the obligation to supervise and inspect the performance of the works and to respect the contractual conditions. The contractor must inform and coordinate with the Supervisor regarding the accomplishment of the works, the schedule of works, the fulfilment of the tasks according to the works plan, the origin and quality of the materials and equipment used, the qualification of the contracted personnel, any other attributions to ensure the compliance with the contractual conditions and the program for carrying out the works. The Supervisor may delegate certain functions to the Supervisor's representative. All actions taken by the Supervisor must be approved by the legal representative of the Contracting Authority.

5.3 For finding certain situations and facts, the arrangement of actions and the ordering of the execution activities of the works The supervisor has the ability to issue administrative orders and mandatory instructions for the Contractor.

5.4 The Supervisor and the Supervisor's representative have access to any construction site, warehouses of materials and equipment used for the purpose of this works contract

#### **Article 8** Documents to be provided

8.1 The Contracting Authority shall provide to the Contractor a copy of the technical project for the works execution and the construction authorization of the works in conformity with the present contract for starting the works.

#### Article 9 Access to the site

9.1 Not applicable

#### Article 12 General Obligations

Not applicable.

#### Article 15 Performance guarantee

15.1 The amount of the performance guarantee will be 5% of the amount of the Contract and any addenda thereto.

#### Article 16 Liabilities and Insurance

16.2 a) By derogation from Article 16.2, a) first paragraph of the general conditions, for the period of implementation of tasks, the Contractor shall ensure that itself, its staff, its subcontractors and any person for which the Contractor is answerable, are adequately insured with insurance companies recognized on the international insurance market, unless the Contracting Authority has given its express written consent on a specific insurance company.

#### Article 17 Programme of implementation of tasks

In case it will be necessary to introduce some changes in the schedule of works execution after signing the Contract, the Contractor will submit for approval to the Contracting Authority, in compliance with the requirements of art. 15 of the General Conditions, the execution schedule amended within 15 days from the date of signature contract by both parties. The Contracting Authority will decide on the approval within 15 days from the date of receipt of the amended schedule of execution

#### Article 19 Contractor's drawings and execution studies

- 19.1 Prior to the provisional receipt of the works, the Contractor shall hand over the operation and maintenance manuals together with the sketches, the execution schemes of the works which shall be sufficiently detailed to enable the Contracting Authority to operate, maintain, adjust and repair all parts of the works. All the technical documentation necessary for the reception and completed by the Contractor will be prepared according to the legislation of the Republic of Moldova
- 19.7 The manuals and technical drawings can be drawn up in Romanian language.

#### Article 20 Sufficiency of tender prices

no additional provisions

#### Article 21 Exceptional risks

21.4 Exceptional low atmospheric temperatures can affect the performance of the contract

#### Article 24 Interference with traffic

24.2 The construction works will be executed so that road traffic will not be disturbed.

#### Article 27 Demolished materials

27.4 The Contractor will remove the demolition materials.

#### Article 29 Temporary works

29.2 The Contracting Authority is not responsible for any temporary works.

#### Article 30 Soil studies

30.1 Is not the case.

#### Article 32 Patents and licenses

32.1 In conformity with Article 32 of the GC.

#### Article 34 Period of implementation of tasks

34.1 The period of implementation of tasks: is maximum 12 months, period of modernisation and extension of the control and road infrastructure in BCP Giurgiulesti.

#### Article 36 Delays in the implementation of tasks

36.1 The rate of liquidated damages for delays in the completion of works shall be 0.1% of the contract price for every day or part thereof which elapses between the end of the period of implementation of tasks and the actual date of completion, up to a maximum amount of 10% of the contract price.

#### Article 39 Work register

39.1 The work register will be kept, completed in accordance with the requirements, norms and legislation of the Republic of Moldova.

#### Article 40 Origin and quality of works and materials

40.1 All goods purchased under the Contract must originate in any eligible source country as defined in the Joint Operational Programme Romania – Republic of Moldova 2014 – 2020 programme, financed by the European Union through ENI (European Neighbourhood Instrument).

For these purposes, 'origin' means the place where the goods are mined, grown, produced or manufactured and/or from which services are provided. The origin of the goods must be determined according to the EU Customs Code or the applicable international agreement.

When importing goods, any change in the specified origin must be pointed out to the project Supervisor and approved by him.

- 40.2 The works and the objects, appliances, equipment or materials used in their construction must comply with:
  - The technical parameters stipulated in the execution project
  - The requirements of the Law of the Republic of Moldova no.721 from 02.02.96, regarding the quality in construction, the norms of the compartments A.02 "The quality system in constructions", A.03. The quality of the executed works must correspond to the requirements, A.02. "The quality system in constructions", A.08. "Execution and reception of constructions as well as according to the norms of execution and reception of the construction elements and works in force".
- 40.3 Replacing the products and procedures provided in the project with others that fulfil the conditions specified only on the basis of the solutions established by the designers with the Contract Authority's agreement. It is compulsory to verify the quality and the reception of the hidden works and / or in determining phases at the constructions and related installations provided in the execution project. The executor will establish and present to the working

group the responsibility of all the participants in the execution process (liability factors, collaborators, subcontractors) in accordance with the own quality assurance system with the legal provisions.

The quality of the works and the goods will be ensured according to the provisions of art. 40 of the General Coordination for the Contracts of works financed by the European Community (vol. 2 section 2).

#### Article 41 Inspection and testing

The contractor shall ensure the access of the Supervisor to the site for inspection, examination and verification of the construction process at the BCP Giurgiulesti.

For all materials, machinery and construction works, whose technical parameters differ or are not included in the execution project, the contractor will present the necessary laboratory samples and a necessary quantity of merchandise to assess the technical parameters at the request of the Contracting Authority.

For all the monolith concrete materials, mortar, reinforced concrete and for the layer of soil compacted by the foundation, will be presented the laboratory test certificates according to NCM F.01.03-2009, NCF.02.03-2005, NCM F.03.03-2004. Welding of metal elements shall be performed by certified workers confirmed through the competency certificate. All tests will be performed by the authorized and accredited laboratories, according to NCM A.03.06-96. The quality level will be ensuring in conformity with the essential requirements established in own quality system, realized by its own staff, with certified building site manager.

#### Article 43 Ownership of plant and materials

43.2 In conformity with Article 43 of the General Conditions.

#### Article 44: General principles for payments

- 44.1 Payments shall be made in MDL.
- 44.2 Not applicable
- 44.3 By derogation, pre-financing payment to the Contractor for the lump-sum advance shall be made within 30 days. Other pre-financing payments to the Contractor shall be made within 90 days. Interim payments to the Contractor of the amounts due under each of the interim payment certificates approved by the supervisor shall be made within 90 days, and the final payment to the Contractor of the amounts due after the final statement of account issued by the Supervisor shall be made within 90 days.

#### Article 46 Pre-financing

- 46.1 In conformity with the conditions established by art.46.1 of the General Conditions, a prefinancing payment can be made in advance at the Contractor request and before the first interim payment takes place, for operations connected with the implementation of the task strictly necessary for the present contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate the use of this payment by submitting copies of invoices or other documents to the Contracting Authority.
- 46.2 The total amount of the pre-financing must not exceed 10 % of the original contract price.
- 46.8 Repayment of the pre-financing shall take the form of deductions based on monthly claims.
  - a) The flat-rate pre-financing (maximum of 10%) shall be repaid by means of deductions from instalments and, if necessary, the balance due to the Contractor. This repayment

shall begin with the first instalment and be completed, at the very latest, by the time 80% of the amount of the Contract has been paid.

Repayment shall be made in the same currency as the pre-financing.

The amount to be deducted from each instalment shall be calculated using the following formula:

$$R = \frac{Va \times D}{Vt \times 0.8}$$

where:

R = the amount to be repaid Va = the total amount of pre-financing Vt = the initial contract amount D = the amount of the instalment. The result is rounded up to two decimal places.

#### Article 47 Retention monies

47.1 The sum to be retained from interim payments to guarantee implementation of the Contractor's obligations during the defects liability period is 10% of each instalment.

#### Article 48 Price revision

48.1 The prices contained in the Contractor's tender are fixed and not be revised.

#### Article 49 Measurement

- 49.1 The works will be checked and inspected by the representative of the Contracting Authority.
  - (\*) The method and conditions for measurement of the works are regulated by the normative-legislative framework of the Republic of Moldova.

#### Article 50 Interim payments

50.1 Interim payments will be made monthly, after the completion of each stage mentioned in the activities chart. Those, will be paid within 30 days after receiving by the Contracting Authority of the request of payment accompanied by the supporting documents confirming the expenses and the works carried out. The Contractor must submit all documents not later than 5 working days after the signing of the minutes for the completion of the works.

The payment request must be accompanied by a form, which will include the total amount of the works, the value of the executed works and the amount to be withheld.

The final payment (20% of the contract value) will be paid within 30 days from the date of the presentation of the following documents: the payment request, the recalculation of the total value of the works in conformity with performed works and the final reception document signed by the Contracting Authority and the Contractor. By final payment, the sum of all payments made under the contract, will not exceed the initial indicating amount.

#### Article 51 Final statement of account

51.1 The Contractor shall, submit to the Supervisor a draft final statement of account when it applies for the provisional acceptance certificate. In order to enable the Supervisor to prepare the final statement of account, the draft final statement of account is submitted with supporting documents showing in detail the value of the work done in accordance with the contract and all further sums which the Contractor considers to be due to it under the contract.

51.2 Within 30 days from issuing the certificate of final acceptance referred to in article 62, the Supervisor shall prepare and signed the final statement of account.

#### Article 60 Provisional acceptance

60.1 In complement to article 60.1 of the General Conditions are the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Moldova.

#### Article 61 Defects liability

- 61.1 The defects liability period is defined as the period commencing on the date of provisional acceptance, during which the Contractor is required to make good any effect in, or damage to, any part of the work which may appear or occur during this period as notify by the Supervisor or the Contracting Authority. The rights and obligations of the parties with regard to this defects liability period are laid down in Article 61 of the General Conditions.
- 61.7 The warranty period shall be not less than 1,5 years (18 months). The Contractor is responsible from the point of view of the execution works to BCP Giurgiulesti, and will have to remove any defects that have appeared after the signing of the provisional acceptance report.

#### Article 68 Dispute settlement

68.4 Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Contract which cannot be settled otherwise shall be referred to the exclusive jurisdiction of Republic of Moldova in accordance with the national legislation of the state of the Contracting Authority.

#### Article 72 Data Protection

Not applicable.

#### Article 73 Further additional clauses

\* \* \*

#### VOLUME 2

#### SECTION 4 SPECIMEN PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

(To be completed on paper bearing the letterhead of the financial institution)

For the attention of Customs Service, 30, Starostenco street, Chisinau, MD-2065, Republic of Moldova, referred to below as the 'Contracting Authority'

Subject: Guarantee No ...

Performance Guarantee for the full and proper execution of Contract RMCO 81701/27.06.2019 – 3.2.3. Modernisation of the Customs Office Giurgiulești.

We, the undersigned, <name, and address of financial institution>, hereby irrevocably declare that we guarantee, as primary obligor, and not merely as a surety on behalf of <Contractor's name and address>, hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor', payment to the Contracting Authority of <amount of the performance guarantee>, representing the performance guarantee mentioned in Article 15 of the Special Conditions of the Contract RMCO 81701/27.06.2019 – 3.2.3. Modernisation of the Customs Office Giurgiulești., concluded between the Contractor and the Contracting Authority, hereinafter referred to as 'the Contract'.

Payment will be made without objection or legal proceedings of any kind, upon receipt of your first written claim (sent by registered letter with confirmation of receipt) stating that the Contractor has failed to fulfil its contractual obligations fully and properly. We will not delay the payment, nor will we oppose it for any reason whatsoever. We will inform you in writing as soon as payment has been made.

We accept that no amendment to the terms of the Contract can release us from our obligation under this guarantee. We waive the right to be informed of any change, addition or amendment to the Contract.

We note that the guarantee will be released in accordance with Article 15.8 of the General Conditions to the Contract and at the latest of 18 months after the implementation period of the Contract.

The law applicable to this guarantee will be that of the Republic of Moldova. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this guarantee will be referred to the courts of the Republic of Moldova.

The guarantee will enter into force and take effect upon its signature.

Done at [insert place], on [insert date]

[Signature]

[Function at the Financial Institution/Bank]

[Signature] [Function at the Financial Institution/Bank]

Stamp of the body providing the guarantee

## VOLUME 3

# TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS SPECIFICATII TECNICE

Nr document	Categoriea lucrarilor solicitate	Numar lista cantitati de lucrari
	LISTA CANTITATILOR LUCRARILOR	
1-1	Excavarea solului fertil	Lista cant de lucrări №1-1 (19SV/8272-0-PG)
2-1-1	Solutii hidrotehnice	Lista cant de lucrări №2-1-1 (19SV/8272-0-PG)
2-2-1	Evacuarea apelor la intrarea pe platforma	Lista cantit de lucrări №2-2-1 (19SV/8272-0-PG)
7-1-1	Amenajarea teritoriului	Lista cantit de lucrări №7-1-1 (19SV/8272-0-PG)
2-1-2	Acoperirea din beton armat	Lista cantit de lucrări №2-1-2 (Nr 15870-0-PG)
4-1-1	Lucrări de montare a rețelele electrice	Lista cantit de lucrări № 4-1-1 (Nr 15870-IEI)
2-1-3	Perete de protecție	Lista cantit de lucrări №2-1-3 (Nr 15870)
7-3-1	Spatii verzi	Lista cantit de lucrări № № 7-3-1 (Nr 15870-0-PG)

#### DESPRE CONSTRUCTIE Partea generală

Proiectul de lucru "Reabilitarea platformei de scanare, reparația drumului, îngrădirea teritoriului, sistemei de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriului postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați" elaborat INCP "Urbanproiect" în baza sarcinii de proiectare a Serviciului Vamal al Republicii Moldova în conformitate cu condițiile tehnice, legislația Republicii Moldova și cerințele actelor normative.

Obiectul proiectat este amplasat la hotarul de sud – vest al s. Giurgiulești rul Cahul. Aceasta este o lucrare de demolare a suprafeței din beton cu construcția și reabilitarea suprafeței platformei de scanare a transportului auto. Construcția rigolelor deteriorate pentru evacuarea apelor de torent care provin din anturajul satului. Totodată se va executa planificarea și săpătura mecanică a pământului din jurul postului vamal, cu semănarea gazonului cu iarbă, nivelarea taluzului.

La baza proiectului sunt puse studii de câmp topo-geodezice și geologice, rezultatele cercetării vizuale a șantierului de construcții

Prezentul proiect este întocmit în conformitate cu normele și regulile în vigoare și asigură calitatea corespunzătoare a construcțiilor și a operării echipamentelor, inclusiv privind:

A-rezistența și stabilitatea ;

- B securitatea în exploatare;
- C protecția contra incendiului;

D – igiena, securitatea pentru sănătatea oamenilor, restabilirea și protecția mediului încunjurător;

E – căldura, hidroizolarea și economia energiei electrice;

F – protecția de zgomot.

#### **1. DATE INIȚIALE ȘI GENERALE**

Documentarea de proiectare a reabilitării platformei de scanare, reparația drumului, îngrădirea teritoriului, sistemei de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriului postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați întocmită în baza:

- Temei de proiectare;
- Certificatului de urbanism Nr. 9 din 01 noiebrie 2017;
- Raportului cercetărilor inginerești geologice;
- Raportului cercetărilor inginerești geodezice;

Condițiile natural – climaterice ale terenurilor sunt caracterizate prin următoarele date:

- Raionul construcției se atribuie la următorul raion climateric, conform SNIP 2-01. 01-82..... III b
- Zona de umiditate a raionului construcției .....uscată
- Temperatura de iarnă a calculată a aerului exterior, a celor mai reci 24h, conform SNIP 2- 01. 01-82......-20
- 5 cele mai reci zile .....16

- Adâncimea normativă de înghețare sezonieră a solului.....0,4m
- Presiunea normativă a zăpezii......50kgf/m<sup>2</sup> -(0,5 kPa)

Procese fizico – geologice nefavorabile (alunecări de teren, prăpastii) pe teren și teritoriile adiacente nu sunt prezente.

Seismicitatea calculată a raionului construcției – 8 baluri, a terenului și edificiului – 9 baluri.

#### 2. PLANUL GENERAL

#### Scurtă caracteristică a șantierului de construcții

Relieful natural al ternului este deluros cu înclinare spre Sud – Vest. Terenul dat pe alocuri este afectat de eroziuni de teren. Comunicațiile subterane sunt reprezentate de conducte de apă, traseul de gaze naturale și cabluri de telecomunicații care au fost acordate cu organizațiile de exploatare.

Planul general este întocmit în conformitate cu comanda beneficiarului și cu Certificatul de urbanism Nr. 9 din 01 noiebrie 2017 .

# LISTA CANTITATILOR DE LUCRĂRI

## Lista cu cantitațile de lucrări № 1-1

Excavarea solului fertil

		(denumirea lucrări)		
N⁰	Simbol norme si		Unitatea de	Volum
crt.	cod resurse	Denumire lucrărilor	măsură	
1	2	3	4	5
1	2	e e	4	5
0	TsC18A1	Sapatura mecanica cu buldozer pe tractor pe	100 2	1 700
0		senile de 65-80 CP, inclusiv impingerea	100 m3	1,700
		pamintului pina la 10 m, in teren catg. 1		
		Spor la consumurile de ore-utilaj din art. TsC18,		
	TsC22A1	TsC19, TsC20 si TsC21, pentru transportul		
1	13022711	pamintului pe fiecare 10 m in plus, peste distanta	100 m3	1,700
		$\mathbf{T} = \mathbf{T} = $		
		prevazuta la articolele respective TSC18A1 teren		
		1 1		
		catg. I		
	Т:	catg. I	<b>3</b> 1 1	
	Li	1 1	2-1-1	
	Li	catg. I	2-1-1	
	Li	<sup>catg. I</sup> sta cu cantitațile de lucrări №	2-1-1	
N⁰	Li Simbol norme si	catg. I sta cu cantitațile de lucrări № Solutii hidrotehnice	2-1-1 Unitatea de	Volum
N⁰ crt.		catg. I sta cu cantitațile de lucrări № Solutii hidrotehnice		Volum
	Simbol norme si	catg. I sta cu cantitațile de lucrări № Solutii hidrotehnice (denumirea lucrări)	Unitatea de	Volum
	Simbol norme si cod resurse	catg. I <b>sta cu cantitațile de lucrări №</b> <b>Solutii hidrotehnice</b> (denumirea lucrări) Denumire lucrărilor	Unitatea de măsură	
	Simbol norme si	catg. I <b>sta cu cantitațile de lucrări №</b> <b>Solutii hidrotehnice</b> (denumirea lucrări) Denumire lucrărilor 3	Unitatea de	Volum 5
	Simbol norme si cod resurse 2	catg. I <b>sta cu cantitațile de lucrări №</b> <b>Solutii hidrotehnice</b> (denumirea lucrări) Denumire lucrărilor 3 Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70	Unitatea de măsură 4	5
	Simbol norme si cod resurse	catg. I <b>sta cu cantitațile de lucrări №</b> <b>Solutii hidrotehnice</b> (denumirea lucrări) Denumire lucrărilor 3	Unitatea de măsură	

3

1	TsA20B	descarcare in depozit teren catg. II Sapatura manuala de pamint, in taluzuri, la deblee sapate cu excavator sau screper, pentru completarea sapaturii la profilul taluzului, in teren mijlociu	m3	38,000
2	TsD06B	Compactarea cu placa vibratoare a umpluturilor in straturi de 20-30 cm grosime, exclusiv udarea fiecarui strat in parte, umpluturile executindu-se din pamint necoeziv, compactat cu placa vibratoare de 1,6 t	100 m3	2,810
3	TsC54B	Strat de fundatie din piatra sparta	m3	28,800
4	IzK03C	Ecrane termoizolante din foi de fibre de sticla - geomembrana	m2	1 063,000
5	AcF03B	Umpluturi in santuri la conductele de alimentare cu apa sau canalizare, ca substrat, strat de protectie, strat de izolare sau strat filtrant la tuburile de drenaj, executate cu pietris margaritar Paton tumot in fundații goaluri, giduri de apriiin	m3	93,600
6	CA03D	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 15/12 (Bc 15/B 200) - jgheab	m3	492,000
7	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	2 460,000
8	CC01E	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor pina la 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere	kg	2 788,000
9	CC01F	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere	kg	5 659,300
10	CC03A	Montare plase sudate la inaltimi mai mici sau egale cu 35 m, la pereti si diafragme, cu greutatea plaselor pina la 3 kg/mp	kg	1 481,500
11	DE11A	Borduri mici, prefabricate din beton cu sectiunea de 10x15 cm, pnetu incadrarea spatiilor verzi, trotuarelor, aleilor, etc., asezate pe o fundatie din beton, de 10x20 cm 5P100.25.8	m	850,000
12	RpCB18G	Demolarea betoanelor vechi cu mijloace mecanice, beton armat - разборка существ.лотков	m3	492,800
13	IzF31B	Hidroizolarea suprafetelor din beton (verticale, orizontale,inclusiv tavane) cu amestec "Penetron" - 2 straturi: suprafata rugoasa - по днищу	m2	877,600
14	IzF31B	Hidroizolarea suprafetelor din beton (verticale, orizontale, inclusiv tavane) cu amestec "Penetron" - 2 straturi: suprafata rugoasa - стен	m2	1 316,000

# Lista cu cantitațile de lucrări № 2-2-1

# Evacuarea apelor la intrarea pe platforma (denumirea lucrări)

		(denumirea lucrari)		
№ crt.	Simbol norme si cod resurse	Denumire lucrărilor	Unitatea de măsură	Volum
1	2	3	4	5
		Capitolul 1. Dojdepriemnic - tip "Bloc" (2 buc)		-
0	TsC54B	Strat de fundatie din piatra sparta	m3	2,800
1	CA02C	Beton simplu turnat in egalizari, pante, sape la inaltimi pina la 35 m inclusiv, preparat cu centrala de betoane conform art. CA01 sau beton marfa M-100	m3	2,800
2	CA03E	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 20/16 (Bc 20/B 250) - Колодец дождеприемный из монолитного бетона M250	m3	13,600
3	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	110,000
4	CA03E	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 20/16 (Bc 20/B 250) - набетонка M250	m3	1,000
5	CA03E	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 20/16 (Bc 20/B 250) - устр.оголовка M250	m3	2,800
6	CA03E	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 20/16 (Bc 20/B 250) - устр.открылков M250	m3	2,000
7	CA03E	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 20/16 (Bc 20/B 250) - опорная подушка M300	m3	1,600
8	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	6,000
9	CC01E	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul	kg	62,080

		barelor pina la 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere		
10	CC01F	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere	kg	340,840
11	CF15B3	Tencuieli interioare si exterioare sclivisite, executate manual, cu mortar de ciment M 100-T de 2 cm grosime medie, la pereti din beton sau caramida, cu suprafete curbe.Pentru utilizarea mortarului marfa M 100-T fara ciment, pentru grund -затирка	m2	67,000
12	IzF04F	Strat hidroizolant executat la cald la terase, acoperisuri sau la fundatii si radiere, in terenuri fara ape freatice, inclusiv scafele si doliile din hidroizolatia curenta pe suprafete inclinate peste 40% sau verticale plane sau curbe, cu mastic de bitum sau bitum cu adaos de cauciuc, aplicat cu peria sau gletuitorul de cauciuc (cosoroaba)	m2	55,200
13	AcE06A	Montarea gratarelor cu rama din fonta la gurile de scurgere ДБ	buc	32,000
14	CP16B	Montarea elementelor prefabricate din beton armat pentru canale (termice, pentru termoficare, de cablaje etc.), placi drepte sau curbe П9д-15	buc	6,000
15	TsC54B	Strat de fundatie din piatra sparta	m3	2,200
16	CA03D	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 15/12 (Bc 15/B 200) -выпускн. лоток M200	m3	7,600
17	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	20,000
18	DI129	Umpluturi cu piatra bruta pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri -Каменная наброска <b>Capitolul 2. Imbracamintea drumului</b>	m3	1,400
		Capitolul 2.1. pasoopka/ Demontare		
19	DG04B	Desfacerea de borduri de piatra sau de beton de orice dimensiune, asezate pe beton -разборка бетон. борта (100.30.15)	m	20,000
20	DI118	Decaparea mecanizata a imbracamintei din piatra sparta	m3	32,000
21	DI109	Decaparea mecanizata a imbracamintei din beton asfaltic	m3	9,600
22	TsC03E1	Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70 mc, cu motor cu ardere interna si comanda hidraulica, in pamint cu umiditate naturala, descarcare in autovehicule teren catg. I - погрузка мусора	100 m3	0,380
23	TsI50A1	Transportarea pamintului cu autobasculanta de 5 t la distanta de 1 km	t	64,600

		Capitolul 2.2. ремонт дорожной одежды/ reparația îmbrăcămintei drumului		
24	DI106	Curatirea mecanica a partii carosabile de praf si murdarie- очистка проезжей части от пыли и грязи механической щеткой	100m2	0,400
25	DI107	Amorsarea suprafetelor straturilor de baza in vederea aplicarii unui strat de beton asfaltic - обраб. жидким битумом (0,65 л/м2)	t	0,030
26	DB19G	Imbracaminte de beton asfaltic cu agregat mare, executata la cald, in grosime de 6,0 cm, cu asternere mecanica крупнозернистый	m2	40,000
27	DB16H к=1,25	Imbracaminte de beton asfaltic cu agregate marunte, executata la cald, in grosime de 4,0 cm, cu asternere mecanica (мелкозернистый т.5 см)	m2	40,000
28	DA04A	<b>Capitolul 2.3. новая дорожная одежда /</b> <b>îmbrăcămintea nouă a drumului</b> Scarificaera mecanica a platformei drumului, executata cu autogreder, pe adincimea necesara, insa cel putin 5 cm, in impietruiri fara adunarea materialului - корыто мехспособом глубюдо	100 m3	0,120
29	DA03A	47см Scarificarea manuala a platformei drumului	m3	1,000
30	DA06B2	Strat de agregate naturale cilindrate, avind functia de rezistenta filtranta, izolatoare, aerisire, antigeliva si anticapilara, cu asternere mecanica, cu nisip (толщ / grosimea 15 см)	m3	4,050
31	DA12C	Strat de fundatie sau reprofilare din piatra sparta, pentru drumuri, cu asternere mecanica, executat fara impanare, fara innoroire (толщ/grosimea.22 см)	m3	5,940
32	DI107	Amorsarea suprafetelor straturilor de baza in vederea aplicarii unui strat de beton asfaltic - обраб. жидким битумом (0,65 л/м2)	t	0,020
33	DB19H к=1,14	Imbracaminte de beton asfaltic cu agregat mare, executata la cald, in grosime de 7,0 cm, cu asternere mecanica (толщ / grosimea 8 см)	m2	27,000
34	DB16H	Imbracaminte de beton asfaltic cu agregate marunte, executata la cald, in grosime de 4,0 cm, cu asternere mecanica (мелкозернистый)	m2	27,000
35	DE10A	Borduri prefabricate din beton, pentru trotuare 20x25 cm, pe fundatie de beton 30x15 cm BP 100.30.15	m	16,000

## Lista cu cantitațile de lucrări № 7-1-1 amenajarea teritoriului

(denumirea lucrări)

№ crt.	Simbol norme si cod resurse	Denumire lucrărilor	Unitatea de măsură	Volum
1	2	3	4	5
		Capitolul 1. Rigola de scurgere		

0	TsC03B1	Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70 mc, cu motor cu ardere interna si comanda hidraulica, in pamint cu umiditate naturala, descarcare in depozit teren catg. II Sapatura manuala de pamint in spatii limitate,	100 m3	1,120
1	TsA02B	avind sub 1,00 m sau peste 1,00 m latime, executata fara sprijiniri, cu taluz vertical, la fundatii, canale, subsoluri, drenuri, trepte de infratire, in pamint necoeziv sau slab coeziv adincime < 0,75 m teren mijlociu	m3	28,000
2	TsC54B	Strat de fundatie din piatra sparta (N1N3)	m3	28,500
3	CA03B	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton simplu clasa M300 (N3)	m3	13,200
4	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	72,000
5	CC01F	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere	kg	48,700
6	CA02B	Beton simplu turnat in egalizari, pante, sape la inaltimi pina la 35 m inclusiv, prepararea cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton clasa M-300 (N1, N2)	m3	13,400
7	DI129	Umpluturi cu piatra bruta pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri - Каменная наброска <b>Capitolul 2. Ж/б труба</b> д=1,0м	m3	1,000
8	TsC03B1	Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70 mc, cu motor cu ardere interna si comanda hidraulica, in pamint cu umiditate naturala, descarcare in depozit teren catg. II	100 m3	0,130
9	TsA02A	Sapatura manuala de pamint in spatii limitate, avind sub 1,00 m sau peste 1,00 m latime, executata fara sprijiniri, cu taluz vertical, la fundatii, canale, subsoluri, drenuri, trepte de infratire, in pamint necoeziv sau slab coeziv adincime < 0,75 m teren usor	m3	2,000
10	AcF03C	Umpluturi in santuri la conductele de alimentare cu apa sau canalizare, ca substrat, strat de protectie, strat de izolare sau strat filtrant la tuburile de drenaj, executate cu piatra sparta	m3	2,100
11	DI110	Amenajarea stratului de egalizare din balast (песчано- гравийн.смесь)	m3	11,600
12	DI119	Fundatii monolite din beton B20 la edificiile artificiale	m3	6,100
13	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	7,800

14	DI122	Montarea podetelor tubulare cu diametrul 1,0 m, inaltimea rambleului pina la 3 m pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri PT10.50-1	m3	3,800
15	DI125	Montarea capetelor podetului tubular cu diametrul 1,0 m pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri - П10.14	m3	2,500
16	DI123	Montarea sectiilor rigolei, 0,5x1,0 m pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri CT-4π(π)	m3	4,000
17	AcE01A	Turnarea peretilor din beton la caminile de vizitare ale canalelor din beton simplu, avind adincimea de 2-4 m - лоток оголовка M250	m3	1,100
18	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	11,500
19	DI119	Fundatii monolite din beton B20 la edificiile artificiale - укрепление выходн. русла	m3	3,600
20	DI120	Executarea hidroizolarii prin lipire in 2 straturi pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri -оклеечная гидроизоляция	m2	0,960
21	DI121	Executarea hidroizolarii prin ungere in 2 straturi pentru edificii artificiale la drumuri - обмазочная гидроизоляция Capitolul 3. Livnepriomnic - tip ''Bloc'' (8м)	m2	35,200
22	TsC54B	Strat de fundatie din piatra sparta	m3	0,880
23	CA02C	Beton simplu turnat in egalizari, pante, sape la inaltimi pina la 35 m inclusiv, preparat cu centrala de betoane conform art. CA01 sau beton marfa M-100	m3	0,880
24	CA03D	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 15/12 (Bc 15/B 200) - колодец водоприемный из монолитного бетона M200	m3	2,400
25	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	8,000
26	CA03E	Beton turnat in fundatii, socluri, ziduri de sprijin, pereti sub cota zero, preparat cu centrala de betoane si turnarea cu mijloace clasice beton armat clasa C 20/16 (Bc 20/B 250) - опорная подушка M300	m3	0,480
27	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	3,000
28	CC01F	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue	kg	114,700
29	AcE06A	si radiere Montarea gratarelor cu rama din fonta la gurile	buc	20,000
				0

30	TsH17A	de scurgere ДБ <b>Capitolul 4. Amenajarea spatiilor verzi</b> Saparea manuala a gropilor poligonale pentru plantari izolate, cu pastrarea structurii solului si separarea stratului de pamint vegetal, gropile avind largimea de pina la 2 m si adincimea de pina la 1,50 m, in teren usor	m3	4,120
31	TsH24C	Plantari puieti de arbori foiosi ,fara balot	buc	30,000
32	Pret de piata	Salcim	buc	30,000
33	TsH05A	Asternerea uniforma a stratului de pamint vegetal, pe teren orizontal sau cu panta de 20%, cu pastrarea structurii, in straturi de 10 cm grosime	m2	14 000,000
34	TsH09A	Semanarea gazonului pe suprafete orizontale sau in panta sub 30%	100m2	140,000
35	TsC18B1	<b>Capitolul 5. Sistematizarea verticala</b> Sapatura mecanica cu buldozer pe tractor pe senile de 65-80 CP, inclusiv impingerea pamintului pina la 10 m, in teren catg. 2	100 m3	5,890
36	TsC18B1 k=0,85	Sapatura mecanica cu buldozer pe tractor pe senile de 65-80 CP, inclusiv impingerea pamintului pina la 10 m, in teren catg. 2	100 m3	1,400
37	TsC03F1	Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70 mc, cu motor cu ardere interna si comanda hidraulica, in pamint cu umiditate naturala, descarcare in autovehicule teren catg. II	100 m3	32,600
38	TsI50A3	Transportarea pamintului cu autobasculanta de 5 t la distanta de 3 km	t	5 379,000
39	TsD08A1	Compactarea mecanica a umpluturilor cu compactor pe pneuri static autopropulsat de 10,1-16 t, in straturi succesive de 15-25 cm grosime dupa compactare, exclusiv udarea fiecarui strat in parte, umpluturile executindu-se cu pamint necoeziv	100 m3	39,890
40	TsH06A	Imbracarea taluzurilor cu pamint vegetal compactat, in vederea consolidarii lor, executata pe taluzuri cu inaltimea de pina la 4 m, cu grosimea statului din pamint vegetal de 10 cm	m2	230,000
41	TsH09C	Semanarea gazonului pe suprafetele taluzelor cu 1 kg saminta pe 100 mp	100m2	22,000

# Lista cu cantitațile de lucrări № 2-1-1

#### Acoperirea din beton armat

(denumirea lucrări)

№ crt.	Simbol norme si cod resurse	Denumire lucrărilor	Unitatea de măsură	Volum
1	2	3	4	5

1	DG06A	Desfacerea betonului de ciment pe suprafete limitate, executate in imbracaminti carosabile	m3	357,000
2	TsC03G1	Demontarea petrisului si nisip cu ecscovator	100 m3	5,250
3	RpDB36C	Desfacerea bordiurilor din beton , asezate pe beton	m	25,000
4	RpDC01A	Reparatii la imbracaminti din beton de ciment la drumuri executate in doua straturi (de rezistenta si de uzura)	m2	90,000
5	TsC19C1	Sapatura mecanica cu buldozer pe tractor pe senile de 81-180 CP, inclusiv impingerea gunoiuluii pina la 10 m, in teren catg. III	100 m3	8,830
6	TsC03G1	Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70 mc, cu motor cu ardere interna si comanda hidraulica, descarcare in autovehicule teren catg. III (погрузка мусора)	100 m3	8,830
7	TsI51A5	Transportarea pamintului cu autobasculanta de 10 t la distanta de: 5 km	t	1 678,000
8	TsC51C	Lucrari la descarcarea gunoiului in depozit, teren categoria III	100 m3	8,830
9	DI110	Amenajarea stratului de egalizare din balast (Устройство подстилающего слоя из песчано- гравийной смеси)	m3	525,000
10	CA02C	Beton M-100 simplu turnat in egalizari	m3	110,000
11	CC01E	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor pina la 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii (арматура для швов)	kg	17,400
12	CC01F	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm in fundatii (арматура для швов)	kg	761,600
13	IzL01A	Izolatie cu bitum executata manual pe bolt (покрытие штырей битумом в швах расширения и сжатия)	m2	46,200
14	DA14A	Beton M350 la platforme carosabile	m3	260,000
15	CC02L	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier, cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm	kg	9 378,950
16	CB02C	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in placi si grinzi exclusiv sustinerile la inaltimi pina la 20 m inclusiv	m2	50,120
17	DE10A	Borduri prefabricate din beton BP 100x30x15 cm	m	25,000

# Lista cu cantitățile de lucrări № 4-1-1

№ crt.	Simbol norme si cod resurse	Denumire lucrărilor	Unitatea de măsură	Volum
1	2	3	4	5
1	33-04-003-1	<b>Capitolul 1. Lucrari de constructie</b> Коэффициент к трудозатратам=1,15 Коэффициент к машинам=1,15 Montarea stilpilor din beton armat LEA 0,38, 6- 10 kV cu traverse fara adaosuri, cu un singur picior CB95-3	buc	12,00
2	33-04-016-2	Transportarea constructiilor si materialelor sustinerilor LEA 0,38-10 kV pe magistrala: a sustinerilor din beton armat cu un singur picior Transportarea constructiilor si materialelor	buc	12,00
3	33-04-016-5	sustinerilor LEA 0,38-10 kV pe magistrala: a materialelor echipamentului sustinerilor cu un singur picior	buc	12,00
4	33-04-007-1	Montarea placilor din beton armat pentru sustineri LEA 10 kV, П-3И	buc	12,00
5	33-04-014-2	Montarea corpurilor de iluminat: JKU-16Y	buc	5,00
6	510-125	Lampa ДНаТ-250	buc	5,00
7	08-02-367-8	<b>Capitolul 2. Lucrari de montare</b> Коэффициент к трудозатратам=1,15 Коэффициент к машинам=1,15 Suspendarea conductorilor electrici izolati autoportanti CIA-2A cu tensiunea de la 0,4 kV pina la 1kV (cu detensionare): cu utilizarea autohidroascensorului. СИП-2 -4x35+1x50 mm2	1000 m	0,13
8	590-12-4	Screpa COT-36	buc	8,00
9	590-12-5	Banda COT-37	m	10,40
10	590-12-6	Cirlig SOT29.1	buc	8,00
11	590-12-6	Cirlig SOT29	buc	3,00
12	15465	Bolt SO14.6	buc	2,00
13	590-12-6	Cirlig PD32-1	buc	8,00
14	590-121	Clema SO69.95	buc	3,00
15	590-122	Clema SLIP22.1	buc	13,00
16	590-12-9	Clema SLIP22.12	buc	8,00
17	590-12-9	Clema SL37	buc	3,00

## Lucrări de montare a rețelele electrice

18	590-121	Clema SO69.95	buc	3,00
19	590-122	Clema SLIP22.1	buc	4,00
20	590-12-9	Clema SLIP22.12	buc	15,00
21	590-12-9	Clema SL37	buc	9,00
22	590-155	Кожух SP15	buc	5,00
23	590-12-11	Проводник ЗП-6	m	9,00
24	590-12-10	Capat SAL1.2	buc	8,00
25	590-166	Consola V4	buc	7,00
26	08-03-573-4	Dulap (pupitru) de comanda suspendat, inaltime,	buc	1,00
27	08-03-525-1	КМПн2/6 Intreruptor sau comutator de pachet in invelis metalic, montat pe constructie pe perete sau coloana, BP32-3P-20A	buc	1,00
28	08-03-526-1	Automat mono-, bi-, tripolar, montat pe constructii pe perete sau coloana, BA47- 29/3/B16A	buc	1,00
29	08-01-080-1	Aparat pentru masurare si protectie, fotoreleu $\Phi \overline{D}$ -4M	buc	1,00
30	08-03-525-1	Intreruptor sau comutator de pachet in invelis metalic, montat pe constructie pe perete sau coloana, ΓΠΒ3-10	buc	1,00
31	08-02-363-1	Console metalice, speciale, sudate, pe stilpi, pentru corpuri de iluminat, cantitate becuri: 1	buc	5,00
32	08-02-147-1	Cablu pina la 35 kV pe constructii si jgheaburi instalate, cu fixare la cotituri si la sfirsitul traseului, BBГнг	100 m	0,05
33	Pretul firmei	Cablu BBГнг-5x6,0 mm2	m	5,00
		Capitolul 3. Utilaj		
34	Pretul firmei	Dulap КМПн2/6	buc	1,00
35	Pretul firmei	Intrerupator BP32-3P-20A	buc	1,00
36	Pretul firmei	Automat BA47-29 3P B16A	buc	1,00
37	Pretul firmei	Fotoreleu Φ-4M	buc	1,00
38	Pretul firmei	Intrerupator ΓΠΒ3-10A	buc	1,00

# Lista cu cantitațile de lucrări № 2-1-2

# Perete de bariera

(denumirea lucrări)

		(dendifinea iderari)		
№ crt.	Simbol norme si cod resurse	Denumire lucrărilor	Unitatea de măsură	Volum
1	2	3	4	5
0	TsC03F1	Sapatura mecanica cu excavatorul de 0,40-0,70 mc, cu motor cu ardere interna si comanda hidraulica, in pamint cu umiditate naturala, descarcare in autovehicule teren catg. II	100 m3	0,750
1	TsI50A5	Transportarea pamintului cu autobasculanta de 5 t la distanta de 5 km	t	127,200
2	TsC51B	Lucrari la descarcarea pamintului in depozit, teren categoria II	100 m3	0,750
3	DI110	Amenajarea stratului de egalizare din balast (песчано- гравийная смесь -500 мм)	m3	29,700
4	CA02C	Beton simplu M100 turnat in egalizari, pante, sape la inaltimi pina la 35 m inclusiv, preparat cu centrala de betoane sau beton marfa, turnare cu mijloace clasice	m3	2,100
5	CA03G	Beton armat M250 turnat cu mijloace clasice, in fundatii si grinda de fundatii, preparat cu centrala de betoane sau beton marfa, turnare cu mijloace clasice (Fm-1)	m3	6,500
6	CC01E	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor pina la 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere	kg	91,000
7	CC01F	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier si montate cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm inclusiv in fundatii continue si radiere	kg	237,200
8	CB02A	Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in cuzineti, fundatii pahar si fundatii de utilaje inclusiv sprijinirile	m2	20,500
9	CA04F	Beton turnat in placi, grinzi, stilpi, preparat cu centrala de betoane sau beton marfa conf. art. CA01 si turnarea cu mijloace clasice M250 (pereti -Pb-1)	m3	24,000
10	CC02I	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier, cu diametrul barelor pina la 8 mm inclusiv, si montate in pereti si diafragme, la inaltimi mai mici sau egale cu 35 m, exclusiv constructiile executate cu cofraje glisante	kg	91,500
11	CC02J	Armaturi din otel beton OB 37 fasonate in ateliere de santier, cu diametrul barelor peste 8 mm, si montate in pereti si diafragme la inaltimi mai mici sau egale cu 35 m, exclusiv	kg	846,100
12	CB02B	constructiile executate cu cofraje glisante Cofraje din panouri refolosibile, cu asteriala din	m2	155,000

	scinduri de rasinoase scurte si subscurte pentru turnarea betonului in elevatii, pereti drepti si		
	diafragme inclusiv sprijinirile la inaltimi pina la		
	20 m inclusiv		
	Placaje din marmura si travertin cu grosime pina		
	la 5 cm inclusiv aplicate pe suprafete plane la		
	pereti, fixate cu crampoane de otel si mortar de		
CI11A	ciment M 100-T cu adaos de var de 3 cm	m2	139,100
	grosime, rostuite cu mortar de ciment alb si praf	1112	159,100
	de marmura, respectiv travertin, pentru		
	dimensiuni ale placilor pina la 0,2 mp/buc		
	inclusiv (piatra de cosauti)		

13

## Lista cu cantitațile de lucrări № 7-3-1 Spatii verzi

Simbol norme si Volum № Unitatea de crt. cod resurse Denumire lucrărilor măsură 2 3 4 5 1 Копка ям вручную размером / Săparea 1 47-02-040-2 100 buc 0.170 manuală a gropilor -0,3 m. TsH109A Imprastierea arborilor si arbustilor pentru 2 buc 17,0 plantare TsH24B 3 Plantari arbustilor forsithia suspensa 7,000 buc TsH24B 4 Plantari arbustilor juniperus buc 10,000 Plantarea plantelor florale perene cu balot de TsH137A 5 pamant dupa schema 0,25 x 0,25 m. in sol, 100 buc 1,000 categorie: I-a TsH09A Semanarea gazonului pe suprafete orizontale sau 6 100m2 1,500 in panta sub 30%

(denumirea lucrări)

#### VOLUME 4.2

#### FINANCIAL OFFER TEMPLATES

#### LUMP SUM CONTRACTS

#### **Content**

- 4.2.1 Introduction
- 4.2.2 Summary
- 4.2.3 Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price
- 4.2.4 Daily work Schedule
- 4.2.5 Detailed Breakdown of Prices

#### VOLUME 4.2.1 — INTRODUCTION

#### 1. General

1.1 The Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price (Volume 4.2.3) is the itemised list of prices showing the build-up of the price in a lump-sum contract. This Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price does not derogate in any way to the clause stating that, in a lump-sum contract, the total contract price remains fixed irrespective of the quantity of work actually carried out.

The amounts due will be calculated:

<For example: through the measurement of the percentage of works carried out in relation to the firm quantities of each item of the Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price and by applying that percentage to the lump-sum price of the related item> <For example: by the tranches specified in article 49(1)(a) of the Special Conditions>.

1.2 The Detailed Breakdown of Prices (<u>Volume 4.2.5</u>) is the list which contains the basic costs, net costs and mark-ups, from which each price on the Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price and on the Daywork Schedule results. The Detailed Breakdown of Prices does not derogate in any way to the clause according to which, in a lump-sum contract, the total contract price remains fixed irrespective of the quantities of work actually carried out.

The Detailed Breakdown of Prices provides the coefficients for applying the price revision formula referred to in Article 48.2 of the Special Conditions and can provide the basis for valuation of additional work ordered referred to in Article 37.5 of the General Conditions.

1.3 Provisional sums for use when works are to be executed on a daywork basis (Volume 4.2.4) can only be executed by administrative order of the Supervisor, in accordance with the terms of the Contract.

#### 2. Specific to Volumes 4.2.2, 4.2.3 and 4.2.4

- 2.1 The item description given in the Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price in no way limits the Contractor's obligations under the Contract to provide all the works described elsewhere.
- 2.2 The prices of the Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price include all incidental and contingent expenses and all risks necessary to construct, complete and maintain all works in accordance with the Contract. Unless separate items are provided in the Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price, prices include all costs involved in the various items of the Breakdown.
- 2.3 The prices do not include taxes and fiscal duties, as exoneration is explicitly given for the Contract. Non-exonerated taxes and fiscal duties are, apart from those stated separately in the financial offer templates, covered in the Lump–sum Price of the Contract and in the prices of the Breakdown of the Lump-sum Price and of the Daywork Schedule.
- 2.4 The Unit prices in Volumes 4.2.3 and 4.2.4 are obtained by multiplying the Net cost of Volume 4.2.5 Table D, on the one hand, with the coefficient K, on the other hand.

The coefficient K represents the proportions between the Site costs (Fc) of Volume 4.2.5 - Table E and the Total net costs (Ps) and between the General costs (Fg) of Volume 4.2.5 - Table F and the Contract price (Pv): K = (1+A)/(1-B) whereby

A = Fc/PsB = Fg/Pv

#### VOLUME 4.2.2 — SUMMARY

Description	Amount [EUR] [local currency]
Total of lump-sum price	
Total of Dayworks — Provisional sum	
TOTAL PRICE	

#### VOLUME 4.2.3 — BREAKDOWN OF THE LUMP-SUM PRICE

Item	Description	Unit	Unit price	Firm Quantities	Lump-sum price [EUR] [local currency]
			-	-	
			-	-	
				- - -	
	Total lump-sum price				

Description	Unit	Unit price	Estimated quantities	Provisional sum [EUR] [local currency]
Labour				
Materials				
Equipment				
Total dayworks provisional sum				
	Labour Materials Equipment <b>Total dayworks</b>	Labour Materials Equipment Total dayworks	Labour Materials Equipment Total dayworks	DescriptionUnitUnit pricequantitiesLabourInstantInstantInstantInstantMaterialsInstantInstantInstantInstantEquipmentInstantInstantInstantInstantTotal dayworksInstantInstantInstantInstant

#### VOLUME 4.2.4 — DAYWORK SCHEDULE

#### **VOLUME 4.2.5 — DETAILED BREAKDOWN OF PRICES**

#### <u>A) Breakdown of the basic prices for labour</u> (converted into local currency or €/hour)

NO	Qualification	Monthly pay (1)	Hourly pay (2)	Overtime (3)	Soc. security contributions (4)	Travel time (5)	Hourly total (6)
A1	Labourer, Cat 1						
A2	Skilled worker, Cat. 3						
A3	Skilled worker, Cat. 5						
A4	Foreman, Cat. 7						
A5	Site manager						
A6	HGV driver						
A7	Heavy plant driver						
A8	Clerk of works						
A9	Mechanic, Cat. 7						
A9	Land surveyor						
A10	Planning draughtsman						
A11							

The above list is given by way of example and is not exhaustive.

(1) Salary if the employee is paid monthly.

(2) Hourly pay if the employee is paid hourly, otherwise monthly salary divided by the legal working hours (... hours/month).

(3) Average cost of overtime, i.e. hourly pay times the overtime coefficient. Average coefficient to be applied to the salary to take account of overtime....... (= total gross salary/gross salary without overtime).

(4) Percentage of the social security contributions (including social welfare, leave, etc.) times the gross salary (this percentage may vary according to the category of employee).

(5) Average monthly or daily travel time divided by the number of daily or monthly legal working hours.

(6) = (2) + (3) + (4) + (5).

Done at .....

The tenderer (signature)

1 December 2016

 $d4w\_finoffer\_4.2\_en.doc$ 

#### B) Breakdown of basic supply prices for materials and consumables (in local currency or €/unit)

	<b>O</b> Description		Origin	Origin Unit price		Tax, duties and other	]	Losses	Total (6)
NO	Description	Unit	(1)	origin (2)	to site (3)	charges (4)	%	Value (5)	
C1	Gasoil	L							
C2	Aggregates for concrete	m <sup>3</sup>							
C3	Sand for concrete 2/4	m <sup>3</sup>							
C4	Cement	Т							
C5	Steel for reinforced concrete	Kg							
C6	Annealed wire	Kg							
C7	Timber formwork	m <sup>2</sup>							
C8	Plywood	m <sup>2</sup>							
C9	Plasticisers	Kg							
C10	Concrete coating	Kg							
C11	Asphalt concrete	Т							
C13	Inspection ladders	U							
C14	Fencing	ml							
C15	Traffic signs	U							
C16									

This list is not exhaustive.

(1) Geographical location of the supplier or quarry.

(2) Supply or cost price at the quarry or on delivery in the country.

(3) Cost price of transport from the quarry or delivery in the country to the site.

(4) To be borne by the firm.

(5) Any losses or breakages to be determined by the tenderer.

(6) Basic prices for supply of materials: (6) = (2) + (3) + (4) + (5).

Done at .....

The tenderer (signature)

1 December 2016

 $d4w\_finoffer\_4.2\_en.doc$ 

#### <u>C) Breakdown of basic hourly prices for equipment</u> (in local currency or €/hour)

No	Description	Purchase date of equipmen t	Replacement value (RV) (1)	Duties Taxes (2)	RV + taxes (3)	nb days useful life (4)	Depreciation /day (5)	Fuel cost/ day (6)	Lubricant cost/day (7)	Spare parts (SP) cost /day (8)	Lubricant & SP taxes/day (9)	Labour cost/day (10)	Total /day (11)	Average daily working time (12)	Total /hour (13)
B1	D8N bulldozer														
B2	14G grader														
В3	CAT-type crawler excavator														
B4	CAT wheeled excavator														
В5	Trencher type														
B5	Pump														
B6	Concrete vibrating poker														
B7															

(1) Estimated purchase price (excl. tax) of a piece of equipment of same kind, but new, purchased in the country's capital at the end of machine life span.

(2) Duties and taxes charged to the contractor at the purchase date.

- (3) = (1)+(2)
- (4) Number of depreciation years by number of days worked per year.
- (5) Daily depreciation = (3)/(4).
- (6) Average daily fuel consumption; the cost of the fuel is given with tax.
- (7) Daily cost of lubricants (excl. tax).
- (8) Daily cost of spare parts (excl. tax).
- (9) Duties and taxes charged to the contractor on lubricants and spare parts
- (10) Manpower price (man/day).
- (11) Daily basic prices of piece of equipment = (5)+(6)+(7)+(8)+(9)+(10).
- (12) Hours of operations (average)
- (13) Hourly operational price of piece of equipment = (11)/(12)

Done at .....

The Tenderer (signature)

#### D) Breakdown of unit prices in the price schedule (in local currency or €)

No of the unit price: Designation of the unit price: Quantities estimated:

Output per day: m³/day

COMPONENTS OF THE PRICE								OUR				
EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES AND SUBCONTRACTED WORKS DESIGNATION	MENT, ES AND TRACTED RKS (Q)	or time using h/day	or time using h/day	or time using h/day	U	DEPRECIATION €⁄h (1)	MAINTENANCE €/h ( <b>2</b> )	FUEL- LUBRICANTS €/h (3)	TOTAL €/day <b>Q</b> x(1+2+3)	Unit price	TOTAL €/day	TOTALS €/day
EQUIPMENT		h										
		h										
MATERIALS												
		h										
LABOUR		h										
		h										
				TOTAL	€/day							
				Net cos	t €/m³							

#### E) Detailed breakdown of site costs (Fc) (in local currency or €)

Means deployed	Number (1)	Basic price (2)	Total net cost (3)=(1)+(2)						
Labour									
A1 Site supervisor									
A2 Engineer									
A3 Clerk of works									
A4 Secretary									
A5 Drivers									
A6 Orderlies									
A7									
Subtot	al labour								
Equipment									
B1 4x4 vehicle									
B2 Saloon car									
B3 Van-type people carrier									
B4									
Subtotal	equipment								
Materials									
C1 Gasoil									
C2									
Subtotal	materials	-							
Other									
D1 Rentals									
D2 Telephone									
D3									
Subtot	Subtotal other								
GENERA	L TOTAL								

#### F) Detailed breakdown of the general costs (Fg) (general overheads and profits)

No		% of the bid			
1	Financial charges				
2	Insurance premiums				
3	Guarantee costs				
4	Price revision				
5	Direct taxes				
6	Other expenses				
		1			
7	Penalties				
8	Contingencies				
9	Office and agency expenses				
10	Net profits				
11	Corporation taxes				
	GENERAL TOTAL				

- 1. Financial charges are expenses incurred outside the production process (project start-up, overdrafts, etc.).
- 2. Insurance is the insurance described in Article 14 of the General Conditions for works contracts.
- 3. Guarantee costs are the bank charges for issuing the guarantee (advance, performance, retention guarantee, etc.).
- 4. Firms may or may not make provision under this heading, depending on their judgment concerning the quality of the price revision formula.
- 5. This involves VAT in the country of works, customs duties on the imported materials, etc.
- 7. If firms think there may be a delay in the works, they can take out cover against it.
- 8. Contingencies here are related to uncertainties concerning tender documents, lack of knowledge of the country, etc.
- 9. General and administrative expenses are made up of firms' fixed overheads such as accounts and quality control, management, various departments and office buildings and are common to all the firm's works contracts. Agency expenses are expenses common to all the works in the agency's area of responsibility.
- 11. These are taxes paid in the country of the works or in the country where the firm has its place of business (for international companies).

#### **VOLUME 5**

# DESIGN DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING DRAWINGS

# Name **Drawing No**

Section 5.1

No	Name	Drawing No	Design No	
		Date generale.		
1	Reabilitarea platformei de scanare, reparația drumului, îngrădirea teritoriului, sistemei de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriul Postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați	Plan trasare și amenajare a teritoriului.		
		Plan organizarea reliefului.		
		Plan de acoperiri.		
		Schema de amplasare a rosturilor plăcilor din beton.		
		Schema de amplasare a armaturilor a plăcilor monolite și rosturilor. Fragment.	Nr. 15870-0-PG	
		Schema de amplasare a armaturilor în rosturile de contracție.		
		Plăci monolite Pm-1, Pm-2. Schema de amplasare a plaselor de armatură.		
		Schema amplasării peretelui de barieră Pb – 1. Secțiunile 1-1, 2-2.		
		Schema amplasării peretelui de barieră Pb – 1. Secțiunile 2-2 (armarea).		
2	Reabilitarea platformei de scanare, reparația drumului, îngrădirea teritoriului, sistemei de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriul Postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați	Date generale		
		Schema de alimentare cu energie electrică cu tensiunea de 0,4kB. Plan general cu includerea rețelelor electrice S 1:500	Nr. 15870-IEE	
		Specificații 2 file		
3	Sistema de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriul Postului vamal Giurgiulești – Galați	Date generale	Nr. 19SV/8272-	
-		Planul de trasare M 1:500	0-PG,SH	
		Planul de sistematizare pe verticală M 1:500		
		Planul terasamentului M 1:500		
		Planul de amenajare a teritoriului M 1:500		
		Țeavă din beton armat. Secțiune. Volumul de lucru.		
		Receptor a apelor tip "BLOC". Secțiune. Volum de lucru.		
		Rigola de scurgere Nr. 1,2,3. Detalii. Secțiuni. Specificații		
		Volumele de lucrări capitolul PG		
		Volumele de lucrări a deciziei cu privire la eliminarea apelor de torent de pe suprafața teritoriului la intrare.		

# List of drawings attached Lista desenelor ataşate

3	Sistema de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriul Postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați	Profil longitudinal PC1+20.8 – PC3+40.9Profil longitudinal PC0+00.0 – PC1+20.8Profil longitudinal PC1+20.8 – PC3+40.9Profil longitudinal PC3+40.9 – PC5+62.6Sectiunea 1-1 PC0+52.3Sectiunea 2-2 PC0+89.4Sectiunea 3-3 PC1+20.8Sectiunea 4-4 PC1+49.2Sectiunea 5-5 PC1+70.5Sectiunea 6-6 PC1+87.4; Sectiunea 7-7 PC2+38.6Sectiunea 8-8 PC2+87.6; Sectiunea 10-10 PC3+51.6Sectiunea 11-11 PC3+62.5; Sectiunea 12-12 PC4+15.8Sectiunea 13-13 PC4+60.3Sectiunea 15-15 PC4+94.1Sectiunea 16-16 PC5+43.2Tipurile de bază a jgheaburilorScheme de armareSpecificații	Nr. 19SV/8272- 0-PG,SH
---	---	---	---------------------------

#### Section 5.2

#### List of design documents available Lista documentelor de proiectare disponibile

No	Designer	Design No	Design name	Date
1.		Nr. 15870-IEE	Reabilitarea platformei de scanare, reparația drumului, îngrădirea teritoriului, sistemei de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriul Postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați	06.12.2019
2.		Nr. 19SV/8272-0- PG,SH	Sistema de evacuare a apelor pluviale pe teritoriul Postului vamal Giurgiulești - Galați	06.12.2019

Drawings are available for inspection from [*date*] at the following address: Starostenco, 30 Desenele sunt disponibile pentru inspecție de la [data] la următoarea adresă:

Consultant: Garștea Valeriu Person in charge: Tel.: 069123022; 022574226

E-mail: <u>valga59@mail.ru</u> <u>rmco-project@customs.gov.md</u>

Signature:....

(a person or persons authorised to sign on behalf of the tenderer)

Date: .....